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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH
ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM"”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will
be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of ZZ Capital
International Limited & 18 & 7N B X & [R - &] (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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Company Profile
RAEN

ZZ Capital International Limited F & A E B A R 2 T (the
“Company”), together with its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) (Stock Code: 08295) is an investments and corporate
investment advisory services firm with its headquarter based in
Hong Kong, with cross-border activities in China, North America,
Europe and Israel. The year of 2016 sets the stage of the
expansion of the Group’s new business, including international
mergers and acquisitions, helping target companies to grow and
expand their business globally.

Asian Capital Holdings Limited (“ACHL") was established in 2010
and is listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Following the acquisition of ACHL by AR iE & A & I8 A [R A 7
(Zhongzhi Capital Management Company Limited*) (“Zhongzhi
Capital”) in 2016, ACHL changed its name to ZZ Capital
International Limited 18 & REI R AR A A).

The Group’s principal operating subsidiary, Asian Capital
(Corporate Finance) Limited, is licensed with the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong for carrying on type 1 (dealing
in securities), type 4 (advising on securities), type 6 (advising on
corporate finance) and type 9 (asset management) regulated
activities. It provides a diversified range of corporate advisory and
assets management services.

In furtherance of the Group’s business, a subsidiary of Asian
Capital (Corporate Finance) Limited, ‘FJIBTI/G 2 BRAEREES
& 12 G BR A A (Asian Capital (Qianhai) Investment Management
Limited*) has been established in 2016, which has been approved
by Shenzhen Municipal Government Financial Services Office as a
Qualified Foreign Limited Partnership.

Moreover, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, ZZCl
Credit Limited (formerly known as Asian Capital (Resources)
Limited), holds a money lenders licence, where the Group can
complement its financial services capabilities by providing finance
against marketable securities.

Further information about the Group, including its controlling

shareholder Zhongzhi Capital, is available on the Company’s
website at www.zzcapitalinternational.com.

*  For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the 2016/17 annual report of ZZ Capital
International Limited FH1E & A E R A IR /A 7] (the “Company”),
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “"Group”) for the year ended
31 March 2017 (the “Reporting Period”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Reporting Period marked the first year of transition for the
Company after 2 15 & & & I & R 2 7 Zhongzhi Capital
Management Company Limited* (“Zhongzhi Capital”) took
majority control of the Company on 24 February 2016, with the
new vision and strategy to expand the Company’s business to
include international investments in addition to corporate and
investment advisory. As part of its global rebranding efforts, the
Company proposed and received shareholders’ approval via a
special resolution at its annual general meeting on 10 August
2016 to officially change its name from Asian Capital Holdings
Limited to ZZ Capital International Limited FF#E & REIFE AR A F.

The Company aims to build a one-stop platform where a
diversified range of financial services can be offered including
global alternative investments. As a result, the Company has
materially enhanced its investment management process and
execution capabilities, corporate governance and internal control,
as well as international footprint. A team of seasoned
professionals has been recruited and overseas offices have been
established in the United States, United Kingdom and Israel.

*  For identification purpose only
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The Company has attracted a total of 43 professionals during the
Reporting Period, including its Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer, as well as regional and functional heads. The
experience and credentials of the team are critical to the
Company’s long-term success. In parallel, three independent non-
executive directors, with complementary global backgrounds and
professional expertise, have joined the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) to provide on-going governance oversight
and strategic advice.

In order to enhance corporate governance and internal control,
the Company has engaged Baker Tilly Hong Kong Risk Assurance
Limited (“Baker Tilly") as its internal auditor to evaluate, assess
and improve its internal control process and to ensure appropriate
policies and procedures are in place. Moreover, Baker Tilly will
regularly update the Company’s management and the Board.

The Company’s internal investment process, information
technology systems, and website (www.zzcapitalinternational.com)
have all been enhanced and upgraded to meet the demand of
both internal and external stakeholders. In order to effectively
evaluate various investment opportunities across the globe, each
overseas office is managed by seasoned local professionals who
report to the Group’s headquarter in Hong Kong.

In parallel, the Group's corporate advisory services completed
three corporate resumptions and acted as the sole sponsor in four
initial public offering (“IPO") engagements. As at the date of this
report, we continue to work on one IPO engagement which
submitted a listing application in September 2016. Mergers and
acquisitions (“M&As"), debt restructuring, fund raising,
independent financial advisory and compliance advisory
assignments all contributed to the Group’s corporate advisory
income.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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AMEME > ARBRANEEBEEEZAL B
ERITHRAE ARV HBEARMEMEFIEE
EENEREEFRE AR RN REKEREES -
R —2HAEREE RFEXMB B I
TEFEMARLRBEFTS([EFE ) RHEF

S A OO BE A par =
BEBEREENMEKER -

RMBEEELRRAMERE  ARRCERBRE
BERNENEAREREGRAR (TXRB]) REAR
ZEED - AP A R E A SEEREF X
EREBRI L ABE IR RERF ° I - RBHS
EHRAARBEEBRELGER -

RATRHRNEFERERT BB RG LA
(www.zzcapitalinternational.com) ¥ & f 3& & Ff
H ATFERBRINIFHENER - BEB
FHERHARKREKE  S8IMIEEEIHE M
KHRUEMNEEALTEE  HERLAEBRRE
72 HBEDERR o

B [RE - ANEEEA DR R TK ZAD
BELRETNEREAAFEEREHEENBRR
BA- RAREAY  RMAEER —BERIRH
HEZBBEETF HEMEBEFERN2016%9 A
R - AMEKBE(HE]D BFEHE %5
BYMKERRARERNZEEEYAREET
REERBEBUA -



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

On 13 March 2017, Asian Capital (Corporate Finance) Limited
(“Asian Capital (Corporate Finance)”) entered into a
supplementary appointment letter with Mr. YEUNG Kai Cheung
Patrick ("Mr. Yeung”) whereby Mr. Yeung will leave the service as
managing director of Asian Capital (Corporate Finance) on 30
June 2017 or such other date as may be agreed between the
parties taking into account the Securities and Futures Commission
of Hong Kong licensing approval status of a firm in which Mr.
Yeung has an interest (the “Term”). Mr. Yeung shall procure,
amongst others, that there shall be a smooth transition and under
the terms of such supplementary appointment letter, Mr. Yeung is
required to reimburse Asian Capital (Corporate Finance) an
amount equivalent to any loss arising from the corporate finance
businesses recorded during the Term as well as any outstanding
receivables arising from the corporate finance business as at the
end of the Term. It is anticipated that this process will be
completed in the third quarter of 2017.

It is the intention of the Group to continue offering corporate and
investment advisory services, and at the same time, to develop
new business strategies, such as asset management and
international investment, to increase its income source and variety
of services being offered. A team of professionals with years of
international experience and expertise have been recruited to
become either regional or functional or business heads.

Zhongzhi Capital

Founded in 2011, Zhongzhi Capital is a leading institutional
investor in China which focuses on investments and consolidation
of industry leaders. Its performance and track record are
recognized by the ChinaVenture Group (% & £ [&l), China’s
leading PE/VC research and consulting institution, as China’s Top
3 M&A Funds, Top 10 Best Return Private Equity Investment
Institutions, Top 10 Chinese Private Equity Investment Firms, as
well as other rewards in 2016. Zhongzhi Capital actively invests
across primary private equity market, public secondary market and
private placements, cross-border M&As, and sector M&A funds in
partnership with leading Chinese enterprises.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results of the Group

For the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue and other income
grew to approximately HK$216.37 million (fifteen months ended
31 March 2016 (the “Prior Reporting Period”): HK$168.61
million). Revenue from investment advisory and management
services under an investment advisory and management
agreement (the ” IAM Agreement”) accounted for approximately
HK$193.98 million (the Prior Reporting Period: HK$127.47 million)
which was a 52% increase when compared to the Prior Reporting
Period. Corporate advisory income amounted to approximately
HK$18.19 million for the Reporting Period (the Prior Reporting
Period: HK$33.62 million), representing a 46% decrease when
compared to the Prior Reporting Period. The decrease is mainly
due to the shift of business focus from corporate advisory to
alternative investments and overseas M&A. Placing and
underwriting income of approximately HK$1.52 million also
contributed to the revenue earned (the Prior Reporting Period:
HK$3.16 million).

There was a net investment loss on financial assets of
approximately HK$0.02 million for the Reporting Period,
compared to a net investment income of approximately HK$0.13
million recorded in the Prior Reporting Period. Net interest income
decreased to approximately HK$2.79 million (the Prior Reporting
Period: HK$4.08 million) due to the disposal of interest earning
securities in the Prior Reporting Period, leaving the bank interest
income as the sole source of interest income for the Reporting
Period.

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

Operating expenses during the Reporting Period of approximately
HK$148.49 million (the Prior Reporting Period: HK$42.73 million)
were significantly higher due to the continued development of
global investment execution capacity, representing an overall
248% increase in such expenses. The higher operating expenses
were mainly a result of increased staff costs of approximately
HK$93.14 million (the Prior Reporting Period: HK$21.21 million)
which included bonus provisions on account of satisfactory
performance, payroll based on elevated headcounts and
recruitment of a world class team. Higher professional fees of
approximately HK$15.30 million (the Prior Reporting Period:
HK$1.88 million) was also witnessed during the Reporting Period
as a result of investment evaluation activities.

The resultant pre-tax profit for the Reporting Period was
approximately HK$67.87 million, compared to a pre-tax profit of
approximately HK$125.88 million for the Prior Reporting Period.

Income tax credit rising to approximately HK$11.31 million (the
Prior Reporting Period: income tax expense of HK$13.21 million)
was the result of a reversal of withholding taxes accrual made in
the Prior Reporting Period of approximately HK$12.75 million in
relation to the performance fee earned under the IAM Agreement,
partially mitigated by the booking of an under-accrual of Hong
Kong Profits Tax amount in the Reporting Period.

Total comprehensive income for the Reporting Period amounted
to approximately HK$79.18 million, compared to total
comprehensive income of approximately HK$112.67 million for
the Prior Reporting Period. Basic earnings per share for the
Reporting Period was approximately HK2.23 cents (the Prior
Reporting Period: basic earnings per share of HK4.50 cents), while
diluted earnings per share for the Reporting Period was the same
as basic earnings per share of approximately HK2.23 cents (the
Prior Reporting Period: diluted earnings per share of HK4.44
cents).

The Group maintained a non-current deposit of approximately
HK$36.08 million as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: HK$0.10
million) mainly for the newly rented Hong Kong office during the
Reporting Period. With most of the Group's historical investments
having been sold or redeemed during the Prior Reporting Period,
investments at fair value through profit or loss were reduced to
approximately HK$0.11 million as at 31 March 2017 (31 March
2016: HK$0.14 million).
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Trade receivables as at 31 March 2017, after allowing for debt
provisioning, decreased significantly to approximately HK$8.27
million (31 March 2016: HK$128.94 million), mainly because of
the settlement of the investment advisory and management
income receivables brought forward from the Prior Reporting
Period of approximately HK$127.47 million pursuant to the IAM
Agreement.

Other payables and accruals as at 31 March 2017 increased to
approximately HK$47.19 million (31 March 2016: HK$15.88
million) which was in line with the bonus accruals made and the
business needs for expanded operations during the Reporting
Period.

As at 31 March 2017, tax payable declined to approximately
HK$0.03 million (31 March 2016: HK$13.03 million) as a result of
the reversal of withholding taxes for approximately HK$12.75
million as explained above.

At the end of the Reporting Period, the Group’s net assets value
as at 31 March 2017 increased to approximately HK$972.24
million (31 March 2016: HK$893.06 million), around 9% higher
than the Prior Reporting Period. This improved financial position
will continue to facilitate the execution of the Group’s expansion
plans. The net assets value per share as at 31 March 2017 was
approximately HK27.38 cents (31 March 2016: HK25.15 cents).

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group continued to adopt a prudent financial management
strategy and maintained a healthy liquidity position. The Group's
cash and bank balances rose to approximately HK$964.28 million
as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: HK$787.86 million). As at
31 March 2017, the Group had net current assets of
approximately HK$934.17 million (31 March 2016: HK$889.61
million), and the current ratio was approximately 20.50 (31 March
2016: 31.10).
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The Group’s operations and investments were financed principally
by revenues generated from business operations and available
bank balances. Funds are largely placed with financial institutions
with maturities timed to cover any known capital investments or
underwriting commitments. The Group had no borrowing and the
gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total borrowings over
shareholders’ funds, was nil as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016:
Nil).

During the Reporting Period, most income billings were in Hong
Kong dollars, including the investment advisory and management
fee receivable under the IAM Agreement which was computed in
Renminbi but fixed in Hong Kong dollars at the time of billing,
and most of the business transactions, assets and liabilities were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Therefore, the Group had
minimal exposure to foreign currency risks. While the Group is
expected to have more foreign currency exposure in connection
with its expansion and investments overseas, such as the
establishment of new offices in the United States, United Kingdom
and Israel during 2016, the Group will closely monitor its foreign
currency exposure and consider using hedging instruments if
available and necessary.

Capital structure

There has been no material change in the capital structure of the
Company during the Reporting Period. The capital of the
Company comprises only ordinary shares.

Total equity attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$972.24 million as at 31 March 2017 (31 March
2016: HK$893.06 million). This increase was mainly attributable to
the increase in the retained profits for the Reporting Period.
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Capital commitments

Other than operating lease commitments of approximately
HK$87.06 million, the Group is subject to the gross underwriting
commitment to take up certain Hong Kong listed equity
investments of HK$50.60 million as at 31 March 2016 (which has
been fully sub-underwritten) and a future capital contribution of
approximately US$1.60 million as at 31 March 2017 (31 March
2016: US$2 million) arising from its application for establishing a
wholly-owned foreign funded equity investment management
enterprise in Qianhai, Shenzhen. Save for the above, the Group
and the Company did not have any significant commitment as at
31 March 2017 and 2016.

Charge on the Group’s assets

As at 31 March 2017, the Group did not have any charge on its
assets (31 March 2016: Nil).

Employees and remuneration policies

As of 31 March 2017, the Group employed 52 employees
including executive Directors (31 March 2016: 24 employees).
Total staff cost (including Directors’ emoluments) for the Reporting
Period amounted to approximately HK$93.14 million. Employees’
remuneration packages are decided based on their job
responsibilities, local market benchmarks and industry trends.
Employee bonus is distributable according to the performance of
the respective subsidiaries and employees concerned. Moreover,
the Group also provides in-house and external training
programmes which are beneficial to certain job functions.

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 7 June 2010
(the “Share Option Scheme”), details of which are set out in note
24 to the consolidated financial statements. No option has
however been granted, exercised or lapsed under this Share
Option Scheme.
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Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (31 March 2016: Nil).

Future plans for material investments or capital
assets

With the transition plan and organizational transformation nearly
complete, the Group intends to actively pursue and develop new
business and diversify amongst private equity, private credit, and
other structured investment opportunities, whilst partnering with
other financial and strategic investors from time to time to grow
profitability and long term sustainability. The Group will also revisit
the internal management reporting system and information in
order to support the growth and resources allocation of the Group
efficiently and effectively.

On 23 May 2017, the Company invested US$1,880,000 to acquire
a 0.673% equity interest in Angiotech Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
(“API"), a manufacturer of branded, private label and OEM
medical device products. The Canada-incorporated target
company has more than 2,000 employees worldwide,
manufacturing facilities in England, Puerto Rico, Mexico and
Germany, and sells to customers in over 80 countries. APl expects
to expand its business, partners and profits in China as a result of
the transaction.

The Company aims to grow its net assets and market value
through a disciplined and diversified approach, and has developed
a strong pipeline of investment opportunities across targeted
geographies and sectors with comparative institutional advantages
and unique insights. While many of the deals pursued are
financially driven, some will be strategic in nature to help the
Company to grow into a more independent global investment and
financial services platform, which will attract existing and
additional institutional capital to support, sustain and increase its
long-term shareholder value and stability.
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Material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies

While the Group made no material acquisitions during the
Reporting Period, on 9 December 2016, Asian Capital (Corporate
Finance), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, disposed of its
100% interest in a non-core subsidiary, known as Well Baly
Limited, to a related party for a total consideration of HK$0.52
million, resulting in a loss of approximately HK$0.34 million for
the Reporting Period.

OUTLOOK

In April 2017, the International Monetary Fund projected 2017
global growth at 3.5% based on buoyant financial markets,
technology innovation and cyclical recovery in manufacturing and
trade, up from 3.1% in 2016, plus a 3.6% forecast for 2018.
While the global economy seems to be gaining momentum,
non-economic factors such as geopolitical tensions, domestic
discord, corruption and terrorism can slow and disrupt growth
rather quickly.

China continues its transition from an export and investment-
driven economy to a consumption and service-oriented one, with
urbanization and technology being key drivers of economic
growth. Government initiatives such as the Shanghai/Shenzhen-
Hong Kong Stock Connect, Belt and Road, Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei
city cluster, Yangtze River Economic Belt, and the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area initiatives provide the
infrastructure to facilitate the movements of people, capital,
goods and services, and to balance economic growth amongst the
regions. Investment will remain a powerful tool to help maintain
an average GDP growth rate of around 6.5% in order to achieve
the goal of doubling GDP and GDP per capita by 2020 (relative to
2010) as set out in China’s 13th Five-Year Plan.
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By leveraging our experienced team, international footprint, China
market access and sector knowledge of Zhongzhi Capital, the
Company is uniquely positioned to become a world-class
investment platform with diversification across geographies,
sectors, and asset classes. Our distributed deal origination model
across the key target geographies in Asia, Middle East, Europe,
and North America, when paired with our vertical sector teams
and centralized investment committee process as well as enhanced
governance model, enables us to work efficiently and collectively
around each investment opportunity. While 2016 was a year of
foundation building, 2017 is a year of execution and acceleration
towards long-term value creation for our stakeholders.

APPRECIATION

We would like to take this opportunity to thank all our team
members for their efforts and ethics, many of whom had joined us
from established firms around the globe. Working collectively
across oceans and time zones, our common mission and passion
enabled us to have gained market momentum and built brand
recognition in a few months’ time, which in turn are making us
the differentiated and preferred investor and partner to our
investees and customers. We would also like to thank our fellow
directors of the Board for their trust, guidance and support to our
strategy and execution throughout the Report Period. With our
commitment and your support, combined with Zhongzhi Capital’s
extensive resources, we are well positioned to succeed in the years
ahead.

By Order of the Board
CHO Michael Min-kuk
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 14 June 2017
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ails of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. DUAN Di, aged 30, joined the Group in May 2016 as the
chairman of the Board and an executive Director of the Company.
She is the chairman of the nomination committee of the Board
(the “Nomination Committee”) and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Board (the “Remuneration
Committee”). Ms. Duan is also a director of Dragon Legend
Investments Limited (“Dragon Legend”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Ms. Duan has, since 2011 worked in Zhongzhi Capital and now
serves as its executive director. She is also the partner’s appointed
representative (J11TEBE B AZIRKREK) of RIYNFNGHESIE
HEEERABDLEERAE) (Shenzhen Qianhai Zhongzhi Jinhui
Investment Management Partnership Enterprise (Limited
Partnership)*) (“Shenzhen Zhongzhi”) and a director of each of
Zhongzhi Capital (HK) Company Limited (“Zhongzhi Capital (HK)")
and Jinhui Capital Company Limited ( “Jinhui”). As at the date of
this annual report, Jinhui, Zhongzhi Capital (HK), Shenzhen
Zhongzhi and Zhongzhi Capital are controlling shareholders of the
Company. Ms. Duan obtained a bachelor of commerce degree in
finance and accounting in 2008 and a master of commerce
degree in finance and marketing in 2009 from the University of
Sydney, Australia respectively.

Mr. CHO Michael Min-kuk, aged 48, joined the Group in May
2016 as an executive Director and the chief executive officer of
the Company (the “CEQ"). He was designated as Partner in
January 2017 and also holds several directorships in certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

Prior to joining the Group, he served as the Head of Mergers &
Acquisitions for Qatar Investment Authority (“QIA”) in Doha from
2013 to 2016. Prior to QIA, Mr. Cho worked for nearly 19 years
with Merrill Lynch where he started his career in New York and
rose to Managing Director and Head of Asia Mergers &
Acquisitions based in Hong Kong. Mr. Cho received a bachelor of
science in business administration degree from Georgetown
University in Washington, D.C., the United States of America (the
“US") graduating Magna Cum Laude.

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. CHEN Jianfeng Peter, aged 47, joined the Group in April
2016 as the chief financial officer of Dragon Legend and was
subsequently appointed as the chief financial officer of the Group
(the “CFO”) in May 2016. Mr. Chen has been appointed as an
executive Director and act as the compliance officer of the
Company since June 2016 and is also the alternate Director to Ms.
DUAN Di with effect from 5 April 2017. He was designated as
Partner in January 2017 and also holds several directorships in
certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chen served at the Canada Pension
Plan Investment Board Asia Inc. as a Senior Principal in the Private
Investments team and as Director, Head of Business Development,
Asia. He previously worked at Bain Capital Advisors (China)
Limited based in Shanghai and at General Electric Company (GE).
He currently serves as a non-executive director of the Hong Kong
Venture Capital and Private Equity Association (HKVCA) and serves
as an officer of the Young Presidents’ Organization (YPO), Pan
Asia Chapter. Mr. Chen holds a bachelor of science degree in
business administration from the University of North Carolina at
Chapel Hill awarded in 1993 and a degree of master in business
administration from the Harvard Business School awarded in
1999.

Ms. ZHANG Yun, aged 31, joined the Group in June 2016 as an
executive Director. She also holds several directorships in certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

Ms. Zhang has worked in Zhongzhi Capital since 2012. She is also
the legal representative and director of both & /I 5T & A & 12
A BR A A (Changzhou Jingjiang Capital Management Company
Limited*) (“Changzhou Jingjiang”) and Kang Bang Qi Hui (HK)
Company Limited (“Kang Bang”) and a legal representative of
FEMEREEREPL(AERAB)CEMER. As
at the date of this annual report, Kang Bang and & /I 5 78 are
substantial shareholders of the Company, and Changzhou Jingjiang
and Zhongzhi Capital are controlling shareholders of the
Company. Ms. Zhang obtained a master of laws degree from the
City University of Hong Kong in 2008 and holds the Chinese
Certificate of Legal Professional Qualification.

*  For identification purpose only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Stephen MARKSCHEID, aged 63, jointed the Group in June
2016 as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of
the audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”) and a
member of the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Markscheid is a venture partner at DealGlobe, a Shanghai
based boutique investment bank. He currently serves as a non-
executive director of ChinaCast Education Corporation and as an
independent director of Fanhua Inc., Jinko Solar Inc., and Ener-
Core, Inc. ChinaCast Education Corporation and Ener-Core, Inc.
trade Over-The-Counter and Fanhua Inc. is listed on The NASDAQ
Stock Market (“NASDAQ") while Jinko Solar Inc. is listed on The
New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE"). Mr. Markscheid also served
as independent director of China Integrated Energy Corporation (a
company previously listed on NASDAQ) and China Ming Yang
Wind Power Group Limited (a company previously listed on NYSE).
He is also a trustee of Princeton-in-Asia. From 1998-2006, Mr.
Markscheid worked for GE Capital (“GE”). During his time with
GE, Mr. Markscheid led GE's business development activities in
China and Asia Pacific, primarily acquisitions and direct
investments. Prior to joining GE, he worked with the Boston
Consulting Group throughout Asia. Mr. Markscheid was a
commercial banker for ten years in London, Chicago, New York,
Hong Kong and Beijing with Chase Manhattan Bank and First
National Bank of Chicago and has years of professional experience
in the financial services industries. Mr. Markscheid obtained a
bachelor of arts degree from Princeton University in 1976, a
master degree in international affairs from Johns Hopkins
University in 1980, and a master of degree in business
administration from Columbia University in 1991, where he was
class valedictorian.
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Mr. Edouard MERETTE, aged 54, joined the Group in June 2016
as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee.
Mr. Merette also serves as non-executive Chairman of the board
of Unigestion Asia, the US$23 billion Geneva based asset
management house.

Mr. Merette was the managing director for Asia Pacific at the
Caisse de Depot et Placement du Quebec (“CDPQ”) until May
2016, a Canadian pension fund with CA$240 billion as at 31
December 2015 in assets, for developing and monitoring its
investments in Asia Pacific. Prior to joining the CDPQ in 2014, Mr.
Merette was the chief executive officer, Asia Pacific for Aon
Hewitt, a fully owned subsidiary of Aon Corporation listed on
NASDAQ. Prior to joining Aon Hewitt in 2007, he was the
President for Asia-Pacific for Mercer, a fully owned subsidiary of
Marsh & McLennan Companies listed on NYSE. Mr. Merette
worked for Mercer for more than 20 years. He was a member of
its global management committee and oversaw operations in Asia
Pacific (2005-2007), Europe (2000-2005), Asia (1996-2000) and
Canada (1986-1996). He also lectured Risk Theory and
Demography at the University of Montreal and Laval University in
the early 1980’s. Mr. Merette graduated from Laval University
with a Bachelor’s of Science degree in Mathematics and Actuarial
Sciences in 1984 and is a Fellow of the Society of Actuaries in the
United States and of the Canadian Institute of Actuaries.
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Mr. ZHANG Weidong, aged 52, joined the Group in July 2016 as
an independent non-executive Director, the member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee.

Mr. Zhang is currently the executive director of OP Financial
Investments Limited (Stock Code: 01140), a company whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He is also the general
manager of Jin Dou Development Fund, L.P., a joint venture
investee of China Investment Corporation and OP Financial
Investments Limited, and a partner of Oriental Patron Financial
Group primarily responsible for private equity investments. Mr.
Zhang has over 13 years of experience in the operation and
management of commercial banking, during which he worked in
the international business department of the Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited (“ICBC”") with final position
level as deputy general manager of department, including 3 years
in ICBC Almaty Branch, where he was in charge of treasury, credit
lending and office operations. Moreover, Mr. Zhang has 11 years
of investment banking experience, served as executive director of
ICEA Finance Group (the investment banking arm of ICBC) and
managing director of Alpha Alliance Finance Holdings, responsible
for corporate finance and sales department respectively. He is also
an independent non-executive director of Tianjin Port
Development Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 03382) whose shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Zhang
holds a master degree from Renmin University in Economics, a
diploma of Programme for Management Development of Harvard
Business School and held a fellowship from Columbia University in
New York.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEEBFARBE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Sergio D'ANGELO, aged 39, joined the Group in September
2016 as Senior Managing Director and Head of Europe. He was
designated as Partner in January 2017 and also holds several
directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Prior to joining the Group, he served at KKR for more than 10
years as a senior member of their Private Equity team. Prior to
KKR, Mr. D'Angelo served as a member of the Private Equity
Investment team at BC Partners in Milan, Italy, and previous to
that, spent 4 years in the Investment Banking division at Schroder
Salomon Smith Barney (Citigroup) in London.

Mr D'Angelo obtained a master of Science in Finance from
Bocconi University in Milan, graduating Summa cum Laude.

Mr. Andrew L. FELLER, aged 41, joined the Group in September
2016 as Senior Managing Director and Head of North America. He
was designated as Partner in January 2017 and is also a director of
77 Capital International (US) LLC, a subsidiary of the Company
established in the United States.

Before joining the Group, Mr. Feller was a Managing Director at
Metalmark Capital, a firm established in 2004 by the former
principals of Morgan Stanley Capital Partners. While at Metalmark,
he was involved in all aspects of the investment process, including
transaction sourcing, evaluation, and execution across a variety of
industries. Prior to the formation of Metalmark, Mr. Feller was an
executive at Morgan Stanley Capital Partners and The Blackstone
Group's Private Equity group. Earlier in his career, Mr. Feller was
an Analyst in Salomon Smith Barney’s Mergers and Acquisitions

group.

Mr. Feller graduated with a bachelor of science degree in
economics, cum laude, and a master in business administration
with honors from The Wharton School of the University of
Pennsylvania.
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The Board is pleased to present its annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Reporting Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of corporate
advisory services and related activities, investment in various types
of assets, money lending, investment advisory and asset
management.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Reporting Period as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
has been covered in the “Management Discussion and Analysis”
section as well as this Directors’ Report of this annual report. Risk
disclosure sections that follow hereafter should be read in
conjunction with the “Management Discussion and Analysis” and
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. These form part
of this directors’ report.

Principal risks and uncertainties
Business and associated risks

The Group has been reliant on its revenue streams to meet its
overhead commitments principally comprised of employment costs
and rental expenses. In doing so, the Group has sought to achieve
at least a breakeven position without reliance on the Group’s
capital and reserve to meet these commitments. Whilst revenue
and income have been steady and indeed improving, with the
development of new business strategies, such as international
M&As, the associated surge in employment and premises costs
may from time to time not entirely covered by increased revenue
in the future. Although the fees paid under the IAM Agreement
have provided substantial profits to allow the Group to sustain
itself for a considerable period of time, it is still subject to foreign
exchange restrictions in China and the exposure of foreign
exchange rate risk due to the fluctuation of Renminbi exchange
rate.
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Operational risk

Investment execution and delivery of quality advisory services rely
on the experience, technical competence and diligence of
professional staff involved. The ability to hire, retain and motivate
competent staff to complete assignments on time to the
satisfaction of clients constantly poses operational risks to the
Group, although the Group has taken out directors and officers
liability insurance to help address this risk.

Reliance on controlling shareholders

The revenue generated from the IAM Agreement, which is entered
into between the Group and its controlling shareholder, Zhongzhi
Capital in February 2016, represents a significant portion of the
revenue of the Reporting Period. In order to mitigate the reliance
on controlling shareholders, the Group is actively pursuing to put
in place new business development strategies by expanding its
asset management business and exposing international M&A
business alongside with the existing corporate and investment
advisory services. This will provide good diversification of revenue
from multiple sources that will provide long term sustainability
and prosperity to the Group.

Credit and counter party risks

The normal payment terms of the mandates relating to corporate
advisory services involve an initial retainer fee and progress
payments based on milestones achieved. The fee notes issued are
due for payment upon presentation. The Group has not to date
experienced any material bad debts. However, there is no
assurance that clients will continue and are able to settle fee notes
in full and in a timely manner. Although the Group’s activities in
securities dealing for clients have been minimal, there are inherent
broker settlement risks involved. The Group’s deposits with
licensed banks in Hong Kong also give rise to counterparty risks. In
addition, with the Group commencing to engage in money
lending, credit risk will be a key risk area every time the Group
lends. Also, the IAM Agreement has generated significant income
that is converted into a large receivable albeit from a controlling
shareholder of the Company. Profitability and cash flow of the
Group therefore may be affected if credit risk is not adequately
assessed, monitored and controlled.
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Financial risk

The Group’s underwriting business exposes its capital to the
underlying securities and therefore requires a robust and adequate
system for risk assessment, robust documentation, limit approval
procedures and constant market and counter party risk
monitoring. The Group has not borrowed during the Reporting
Period so there have been no liquidity and funding cost risks. The
Group has reduced its historical investment portfolio to a very low
level so its equities market risk is minimal. Revenue has mostly
been in Hong Kong dollars so there is little currency risk. However,
as the Group diversifies its global investment income stream and
perhaps starts to increase borrowings, the risk profile may change
accordingly .

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is critically aware of the need to have policies and
practices that are environmentally friendly. The management has
promoted careful use of resources, for example, use of
transmission of bulk documents through electronic means,
marking up of documents electronically rather than using printed
versions, double-sided printing, recycling of printed papers and
envelopes, and turning off lights and air conditioning at off hours.
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Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations is a cornerstone of
operating the businesses of the Group. Changes in laws, rules,
regulations and enforcement practices may constantly pose
challenges to the operation of the Group. Amongst others, the
Group operates within the confine of the relevant company laws
in Hong Kong, Cayman Islands, British Virgin Islands, Israel,
England, the United States and The People’s Republic of China, as
well as under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) and the
Securities Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong
Kong (“SFO"). Asian Capital (Corporate Finance) is a corporation
licensed under section 116 of the SFO for carrying on type 1, 4, 6
and 9 regulated activities, and therefore subject to the
requirements of SFO and codes and guidelines issued by the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures Commission. ZZCl Credit Limited
(formerly known as Asian Capital (Resources) Limited) holds a
money lenders licence and is subject to the provisions of the
Money Lenders Ordinance. The Group has established and
maintained adequate policies and procedures to ensure
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. In addition,
the Group has also adopted a whistleblowing policy for reporting
of wrong-doing within the Group. The whistleblowing policy can
be found in the Group’s compliance manual which is regularly
reviewed and updated as and when necessary. The Group has
assembled a new team of professionals with many years of
experience and expertise in legal, compliance and financial control
in the financial industry. With the right blend of talent, this team
provides the Group with the requisite level of quality assurance to
ensure compliance with all relevant laws and regulations, and to
minimize the Group's risk exposure as it embarks on new business
initiatives such as asset management and international M&As.
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Key relationships with employees, customers,
suppliers and other stakeholders

Details of emolument policy and employee benefits are set out in
the section headed “Employees and remuneration policies” under
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report. The
Group’s operation and organizational structure has been fairly
simple and has been able to maintain good relations with its staff
without encountering any major difficulties in its recruitment or
retention. In addition, the Group also trains and equips staff who
have shown good potential in the corporate finance advisory
industry and exhibit willingness to work diligently. There have
been no interruptions to its operations nor have there been any
labour disputes in the past.

Since listing on GEM in June 2010, the Group enhanced its
compensation policy with the implementation of the share option
schemes, aligning the long term objectives of staff with those of
the Group.

The Group has maintained a supportive relationship with its
customers and suppliers which are important stakeholders for its
intermediary businesses. The Group has also sought to be
transparent with its shareholders and our Directors have always
had in mind interests of all shareholders.

al Report &M
- ==l
Directors’ Report

EEERE

BES FF HEBREMGRNZAEBEEN
ERERE

FHBRRREERAOFBERNAFRIEEE
AR AT [EE RFMBK] —& - K&
BEENARMABRBRYBE  eHRABTH
FRIFAEFE  BRGNABEIRE N EBINER
BERME - ftH AEB MBI REEECER
BEMTEAERIFBEYRELZ N TIENET -
ARBBEL ELEDE - BERBEFSENS

HR2010F6 AERIXR EMIR - AEEEHED
R BB EFMEER S ETHRBER
EAKEETE K-

HAKETNEBME  HEFPRHERAER
MRS  AREEFEE IR RIS
B AEETFEZHERRAFBPANEE ME
ENR AP A BCRA A2

27



EARERERAR

Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period and the state of
affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2017 are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 66 to 158 of this
annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
Reporting Period (the Prior Reporting Period: Nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 7 August 2017 to Thursday, 10 August 2017 (both days
inclusive) for the purpose of determining the entitlement to attend
and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM"). During which period no transfer of shares
of the Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the AGM, all completed transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) must be lodged
with the Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar of the Company,
Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Friday, 4 August 2017.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in the plant and equipment of the Group during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 23
to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2017, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders comprising share premium account
and retained earnings amounted to approximately HK$810.05
million (31 March 2016: HK$716.18 million). Details of the
Company’s distributable reserves as at 31 March 2017 are set out
in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and as at the date of
this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Ms. DUAN Di (Chairman)
(appointed on 12 May 2016)

Mr. CHO Michael Min-kuk (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 12 May 2016)

Mr. CHEN Jianfeng Peter* (Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed on 17 June 2016)

Ms. ZHANG Yun
(appointed on 17 June 2016)

Mr. YEUNG Kai Cheung Patrick
(appointment lapsed on 17 June 2016)

Mr. CHAN Hok Leung
(appointment lapsed on 17 June 2016)

Non-executive Director

Mr. XIN Luo Lin
(appointment lapsed on 17 June 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Stephen MARKSCHEID

(appointed on 18 June 2016)
Mr. Edouard MERETTE

(appointed on 18 June 2016)
Mr. ZHANG Weidong

(appointed on 5 July 2016)
Mr. CHAN Kai Nang

(appointment lapsed on 17 June 2016)
Mr. TSUI Pui Yan

(resigned on 18 June 2016)
Mr. YI Xigun

(resigned on 6 April 2016)

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
currently in service are set out on pages 17 to 22 of this annual
report.

* also appointed as alternate Director to Ms. DUAN Di on
5 April 2017
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In accordance with Articles 16.18 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Ms. DUAN Di, Mr. CHO Michael Min-kuk and Mr.
CHEN lJianfeng Peter will retire by rotation as executive Directors
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, change in
information of Directors are set out below:

REANF ZAKERMAE16.181F BB
T HEEEERRRZEEEBRERBRERF
A LFWERTHRTES  HRHAERBREZE
BB o

EZEREE

RIEAI R FTRAIE 17.50AMN 1§ - EFERE
BHEANAT

Name of Director Details of change

EEpng BEFE

Mr. CHO Michael Min-kuk Designated as Partner in January 2017

L L R2017F 1 REZEREGEA

Mr. CHEN Jianfeng Peter Appointed as alternate Director to Ms. DUAN Di on 5 April 2017
BR&SE S R2017F4 RS BEZERRER T BEES

Designated as Partner in January 2017

R2017F 1 HEZEREEA

Mr. ZHANG Weidong Appointed as independent non-executive Director on 5 July 2016
SRETRTE R201657 A5 AEZERBUIFNITES

Appointed as executive director of OP Financial Investments Limited (Stock
Code: 01140), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on

10 February 2017

P2017F2 B 10 AR ABIAMEM EM AR RESRIEEARAF (K
R5E  01140) T E S

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Group which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provide that Directors
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained in
defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which
judgment is given in his favour, or in which he is acquitted. The
Company has maintained liability insurance to provide appropriate
cover for the Directors during the Reporting Period.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2017, none of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities
transactions by the Directors to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2017, so far as was known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief executive of
the Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO, or who were directly or indirectly interested in 5%
or more of the nominal value of any class of shares capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any
member of the Group:
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Long positions in shares of the Company RAEABRGHER
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held in the Company
D RREN
BRRERE &4 FrEERG A BHAED
Jinhui (Note 1) Beneficial owner 2,159,552,102 60.82%
Jinhui (Ff3E1) EnEEA
Zhongzhi Capital (HK) (Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation 2,159,552,102 60.82%
RIEER(EE) (Fat1) REwEEa R
Shenzhen Zhongzhi (Notes 1 and 3) Interest of controlled corporation 2,159,552,102 60.82%
wINPIE (Bfat1 K& 3) RS AR R
Kang Bang (Note 2) Beneficial owner 455,820,525 12.84%
ERH (Fizt2) ERnlEA
EMEEFB (Notes 2 and 3) Interest of controlled corporation 455,820,525 12.84%
EINERF (Mfat2 K& 3) RS AR R
AEREABELCEEEGR AR Interest of controlled corporation 2,615,372,627 73.66%
(Tibet Kangbang Sheng Bo Business
Management Company Limited*)
("Tibet Kangbang”) (Note 3)
PR E BB ECEEREFR AR REwEE AR
(TEasm B 1) (H17t 3)
Changzhou Jingjiang (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 2,615,372,627 73.66%
BINRL (Mfat3) REFLER R
Zhongzhi Capital Interest of controlled corporation 2,615,372,627 73.66%
(Note 3)
RIEE A (et 3) REH AR R
RESE(ER)EXRERAR AT Interest of controlled corporation 2,615,372,627 73.66%

(Note 3)
FERROLR) EREEERAA
(K13 3)
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding

Name of shareholder Capacity shares held in the Company

EARR R REN

REREHE =37 RO EE BB

FEREULR)ERNEEERAR] Interest of controlled corporation 2,615,372,627 73.66%
(Note 3)

HERE (LR EREEERAF XEHEEmER

(K1t 3)

Mr. XIE Zhikun (“Mr. Xie") (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 2,615,372,627 73.66%

frER ([ d]) (Wi 3)

Notes:

REHLAE MR

For identification purpose only

Jinhui is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Zhongzhi Capital (HK), which in turn is
wholly-owned by Shenzhen Zhongzhi. As such, each of Jinhui, Zhongzhi
Capital (HK) and Shenzhen Zhongzhi is deemed to be interested in the
2,159,552,102 shares in the Company by virtue of the SFO.

Kang Bang is a wholly-owned subsidiary of & /JIE#. As such, each of Kang
Bang and &/ is deemed to be interested in the 455,820,525 shares of
the Company by virtue of the SFO.

Shenzhen Zhongzhi is owned as to 95% by Tibet Kangbang as limited partner
and 5% by Changzhou Jingjiang as general partner, and &/ # is owned
as to 99% by Changzhou Jingjiang as limited partner and 1% by Tibet
Kangbang as general partner. Tibet Kangbang and Changzhou Jingjiang are
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Zhongzhi Capital which in turn is owned as to
95% by F)ERE (1L R) EXEEFRAF]. FERF(ILR) EXEEFR
22A] is owned as to 99.933% by H/&R L (1t ) EAXREHEH R A 7] which
is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Xie. As such, each of Tibet Kangbang,
Changzhou Jingjiang, Zhongzhi Capital, #5/2@ (1L ) EXEEFR A F],
FERE (I R) EAREEBR A and Mr. Xie is deemed to be interested
in an aggregate of 2,615,372,627 shares of the Company held by Jinhui and
Kang Bang by virtue of the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, the Directors were
not aware of any other person (other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO, or who was directly or indirectly interested in 5%
or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any
member of the Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted a pre-IPO share option scheme (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) and a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 7 June 2010. The principal terms of
the two schemes were summarised in the sections headed “Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme” and “Share Option Scheme” in
Appendix V to the Company'’s prospectus dated 11 June 2010.

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share
Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to the
participants as incentive or reward for their contributions to the
Group. The details of the Share Option Schemes adopted by the
Company are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the Company granted
options to Directors and employees of the Group on 10 June 2010
for the subscription of new shares of the Company at an exercise
price of HK$0.20 per share. No further options can be granted
thereafter. All options previously granted had been fully exercised
by 10 June 2015.

Share Option Scheme

During the Reporting Period, no option was granted, exercised or
lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” above, at no time during the Reporting Period was the
Company, its subsidiaries or its ultimate holding company or any
subsidiary of such ultimate holding company a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no other
contract of significance between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and any controlling shareholder of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, none of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries has entered into any contract of significance for the
provision of services by any controlling shareholder of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no other transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party or were parties and in which a Director or any entities
connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Reporting Period or at any
time during the Reporting Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or in existence during the Reporting Period.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has through the Nomination Committee reviewed
the independence of each of the independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Stephen MARKSCHEID, Mr. Edouard
MERETTE and Mr. ZHANG Weidong, who were in service during
the Reporting Period, and has received annual confirmations of
their independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of them independent.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

A significant related party transaction entered into by the Group
during the Reporting Period as disclosed in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements which constituted connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction under the GEM
Listing Rules is as follow:

Investment advisory income from controlling shareholder

On 2 February 2016, Zhongzhi Capital and Asian Capital
(Corporate Finance) entered into the IAM Agreement, pursuant to
which Asian Capital (Corporate Finance) was appointed as an
investment manager to Zhongzhi Capital to provide investment
advice and investment management services in managing the
investment portfolio commencing from 21 March 2016 to 31
March 2018. Details and principal terms of the IAM Agreement
including the remuneration payable to Asian Capital (Corporate
Finance) by Zhongzhi Capital in terms of management fee and
performance fee under the IAM Agreement were set out in the
circular of the Company dated 4 March 2016.
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Zhongzhi Capital is a controlling shareholder and a connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the IAM Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The annual cap for the period from 21 March
2016 to 31 March 2016 was HK$150 million and for each of the
periods from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 and from 1 April
2017 to 31 March 2018 was HK$250 million. As the applicable
percentage ratios in respect of the annual caps exceeded 25%
and the annual caps were more than HK$10,000,000, the
transactions contemplated under the IAM Agreement were
subject to the reporting, announcement, independent
shareholders’ approval and annual review requirements under the
GEM Listing Rules. On 21 March 2016, the independent
shareholders of the Company duly approved the IAM Agreement
and the annual caps. During the Reporting Period, revenue from
investment advisory services under the IAM Agreement amounted
to approximately HK$193.98 million.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
confirmed that the above continuing connected transaction has
been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii)
according to the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, has been
engaged to report on the above continuing connected transaction
and it has provided a letter to the Board confirming that nothing
has come to its attention that causes it to believe that the above
continuing connected transaction (i) have not been approved by
the Board; (ii) were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group; (iii) were not entered into,
in all material respect, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transactions; and (iv) have exceeded the relevant
annual cap.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any related
party transactions disclosed in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements that constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions of the Group, nor are there any
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions that
require to be disclosed in this annual report under the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements, where applicable, in accordance with Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Ms. DUAN Di and Ms. ZHANG Yun, executive Directors up until
the date of this report, served certain capacities in Zhongzhi
Capital and/or its subsidiaries as listed below which provide asset
management, investment management and/or investment
advisory services that may compete or are likely to compete with
the business of the Group:

EENEFRBNES
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Ms. DUAN Di

BRHEX+

Name of company AEEH Capacity
g1

Zhongzhi Capital FEE A Legal representative and director
EERERARES

Shenzhen Zhongzhi IR A Legal representative
EEREK

Ms. ZHANG Yun

RAEK L

Name of company AEEH Capacity
51

Changzhou Jingjiang N RT Legal representative and director
EERRALES

EINEEF BNED Legal representative
EEREA

BMEKEEEREZAEGRAR] EMEREEEREABRAR Legal representative and director
EERBEARES

IREEPEERERNERAR IRE P EEEERERAF Legal representative and director
EERKTALES

TRERPXEEZRNEFTRAA TRERPEEEGBRAEGRAR Legal representative and director
FEERERALES

IR RBARCEERZRNETRAA TEBORMCEETEZMRNER AT Legal representative and director
FEERERARES

IRFELEEIRERNERAR IRFEPEEEERERAF Legal representative and director
EERRARES

TRmZPEEREAERAR] TRHEAPEERERNERAF Legal representative and director
FEERRALES

TRERPEXEREZRNETRD IREECXERZERNERAR Legal representative and director
FEEREARES

IREECXERERAEGRAR TRRECXEEERERAF Legal representative and director
EERKARES
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Name of company AEEH Capacity
g1
hEREZPETIEARLE NiEEELPEEEEREE Legal representative
(BRER) (BR&®%) EEREA
NETHERERaREE NiETHPEEEGREE Legal representative
(BRER) (BR&R) EEREKA
TR ErEERHRNGREE IRAECEEEFRNEREE  Legal representative
(BR&ER) (BERER) EEREA
BMEECEEEZAEBRAR BMNEECEERFZRNBRAR Legal representative and director
EERKARES
TRERD ¥ BB AR AR IRERPEERERNETRAR Legal representative and director
FEERRALES
TEERCEEEZRNFTRAA TEERPEEEZRAERAA Legal representative and director
FEEREARES
IREEPEEIRERAERAR IREErXEEERERAR Legal representative and director
EERKARES
IREEPXEERERAEGRARF IRIEEPEEEERERAF Legal representative and director
FEERKALES
BMNEBCEERERAEGRLE BMNEBOEEEZNESRELE  Legal representative
(BERER) (BRER) EEREA
FRINBRIEEERERAR ABRIEEERFR AR Legal representative and director
FEEREBEARES

Zhongzhi Capital, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Jinhui
and Kang Bang, indirectly owns a 73.66% interest in the
Company and is the controlling shareholder of the Company.
Zhongzhi Capital’s key services include private equity investments
in the primary market, private placement, mergers and acquisitions
of overseas businesses and funds which may compete or are likely
to compete with the business of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any
business or interest of the Directors, the controlling shareholders
of the Company and their respective close associates (as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules) that competed or might compete
with the businesses of the Group nor any conflict of interest which
any such person had or might have with the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association of the Company or the laws of Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to existing shareholders.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on publicly available information and within the knowledge
of the Directors, as at the date of this report, there is sufficient
public float in the issued share capital of the Company pursuant
to the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND
CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Through community involvements by the Group and its
employees, the Group is committed to being a good corporate
citizen, and Asian Capital (Corporate Finance) has, since 2008,
been awarded the Caring Company Logo by The Hong Kong
Council of Social Service. During the Reporting Period, the Group
took on two interns (the Prior Reporting Period: 3) and made
charitable donations of approximately HK$0.01 million for Asian
Capital Holdings Limited Scholarship of the Chinese University of
Hong Kong (the Prior Reporting Period: HK$0.15 million)

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group endeavors to minimize impact to the environment. For
the purpose of disclosing the information in relation to
environment, social and governance (“ESG") in accordance with
ESG Reporting Guide in Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules, an
ESG report of the Company will be published on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company within three months after
the publication of this annual report of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

In the Reporting Period, the Group's five largest customers
accounted for approximately 96.48% of the Group’s revenue with
the largest customer constituted approximately 90.78% of the
Group's revenue.

The largest customer during the Reporting Period was Zhongzhi
Capital, which is a controlling shareholder of the Company
interested in approximately 73.66% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at 31 March 2017. The investment advisory
income generated under the IAM Agreement have resulted in an
over concentration of revenue contributed by Zhongzhi Capital.
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Save as disclosed above, based on information available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, none of the
Directors, their close associates, or any shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owned more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had interest in
any of the Group’s five largest customers during the Reporting
Period.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The Group did not have any outstanding bank loans and other
borrowings as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: Nil).

PROPERTIES

The Group did not own any property or property interests as at 31
March 2017.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

No interest was capitalized by the Group during the Reporting
Period.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 2.4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 159 to
160 of this annual report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the Reporting Period.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practice adopted
by the Company is set out on pages 43 to 58 of this annual
report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 23 May 2017, ZZCl Holdings (1) Limited, being a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement as
the buyer with ZZ Capital Holdings No.1 Company Limited as the
seller, being a connected person of the Company, pursuant to
which the buyer agreed to purchase and the seller agreed to sell
0.673% equity interest in SSC Holdco Limited at a consideration
of US$1,880,000 subject to and upon the terms of such
agreement. Details of the above transaction was disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 23 May 2017.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
Reporting Period have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution for the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as
the auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the annual
general meeting.

By Order of the Board
DUAN Di

Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 June 2017
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(A) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with
all the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules
(the “CG Code") throughout the Reporting Period except
for the deviations from code provisions A.2.1 and A.5.1 of
the CG Code.

In accordance with code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code,
the roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.
Following the change of Board compositions on 12 May
2016, the roles of chairman of the Board and the chief
executive officer are separated.

Code provision A.5.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the
Company should establish a nomination committee which is
chaired by the chairman of the board or an independent
non-executive director and comprises a majority of
independent non-executive directors. However, due to the
change of Board composition and prior to the appointment
of Mr. Stephen MARKSCHEID, Mr. Edouard MERETTE and
Mr. ZHANG Weidong, the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee did not comprise a majority of
independent non-executive Directors as required under Rule
5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules and code provision A.5.1 of
the CG Code respectively. Furthermore, the number of
independent non-executive Directors and members of the
Audit Committee fell below the minimum numbers required
under Rules 5.05(1) and 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules
respectively and the number of independent non-executive
Directors did not represent at least one-third of the Board as
required under Rule 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules.
Subsequent to their appointments, the above deviations
have been rectified.

The Board regularly monitors and reviews the Group's
progress in respect of corporate governance practices to
ensure compliance with the code provisions of the CG Code.
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
had made specific enquiries to all the relevant Directors who
confirmed their compliance with the required standard of
dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors throughout the Reporting
Period. No incident of non-compliance was noted by the
Company during this Reporting Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board composition

The Board is responsible for formulating the overall strategy
and overseeing the development of the Group. In so doing,
the Board receives monthly reports from the CEO, monitors
the internal control policies as well as risk management
effectiveness, and evaluates the financial performance of the
Group with an aim to enhancing shareholders’ value. The
Board currently comprises four executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The composition of
the Board sets out on page 29 of this annual report.
Biographical details of the Directors and the relationship
amongst them, if any, are set out on pages 17 to 21 of this
annual report.

Five Board meetings were held during the Reporting Period
of which one was attended by the former board members.
The composition of the Board and attendances of the
relevant Directors are set out on pages 51 to 52 of this
report.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the
GEM Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three
independent non-executive Directors representing not less
than one-third of the Board with all of them having
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The Company has,
through the Nomination Committee, reviewed the
independence of, and received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of Mr. Stephen MARKSCHEID, Mr.
Edouard MERETTE and Mr. ZHANG Weidong, and considers
all of them independent in accordance with the guidelines
set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Delegation to Board committees and
management

The Board has the overall responsibility for business
development, leadership, management and control of the
Group and is responsible for promoting the success of the
Group by directing, supervising and monitoring the Group’s
affairs. It has established three committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Audit Committee with written terms of reference set out
in accordance with the CG Code. More details of these
committees are set out in separate sections of this report.

The Board delegates necessary powers and authorities to the
executive Directors to facilitate the efficient day to day
management of the Group’s business. Investment decisions
were made by the executive Directors pursuant to the
procedures and limits adopted by the Group. Delegated
authorities in the form of monetary limits were set for the
executive Directors and management of the Group for
financial commitments and capital expenditures so that they
could apply their discretion and respond swiftly to
investment opportunities and business needs.

The Board also delegates certain necessary powers and
authorities to the subsidiary’s board of directors to review
the corporate advisory services while the Board has an
oversight role.
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In addition, the Board delegates to the Remuneration
Committee the authority to determine remuneration for
individual executive Directors and members of senior
management.

Corporate governance functions

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest
standards of corporate governance yet being pragmatic on
business decisions and management efficiency. The
independent non-executive Directors were members, and
represent the majority, of all the Board committees of the
Company, namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Whilst the
Board was ultimately responsible for corporate governance
matters, it delegated much of these functions to the Audit
Committee which comprised only of independent non-
executive Directors and was assisted by Baker Tilly (the
“Internal Auditor”) performing the internal audit function.

During the Reporting Period, the Board, among other things,
reviewed the relevant procedures and monetary limits
delegated to the executive Directors and management of
the Group in respect of investments, financial commitments
and money lending activities; approved the Group’s updated
compliance manual and policies on corporate governance
and internal controls applicable to Directors, employees and
contractors; reviewed and monitored the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; and reviewed the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report.

Continuous Professional Development

During the Reporting Period, all current Directors
participated in continuous professional development,
variously in attending seminars, conferences and/or in-house
briefing, and/or reading materials relevant to their duties
and responsibilities and/or the Group’s businesses to
develop, refresh and update their knowledge and skills.
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TEERRE
Based on information and records provided by the current RIFRATESREZER Middk - 520
Directors, they participated in trainings which covered the ZIEIREA TR
following:
Corporate
governance, Financial,
rules and management
regulations and other
(including business skills
directors’ duties) and knowledge
EER - B EER
Name of Directors RAIRAH HitiEBRER
BEx=ps (BRESRHHK) H
Executive Directors: HITEE
Ms. DUAN Di Bosit
(Appointed on 12 May 2016) (R2016 5 H 12 AEZE) v
Mr. CHO Michael Min-kuk ik gETb e
(Appointed on 12 May 2016) (R2016 5 H 12 AEZE) v 4
Mr. CHEN Jianfeng Peter BR824
(Appointed on 17 Jun 2016) (R2016 6 A 17 AEZE) v 4
Ms. ZHANG Yun Rt
(Appointed on 17 Jun 2016) (R2016%F6 A 17 HEZF) v
Independent Non-executive Directors: BV HHTEE :
Mr. Stephen MARKSCHEID Stephen MARKSCHEID 5£ 4
(Appointed on 18 Jun 2016) (20166 518 HEZ(F) v/ v/
Mr. Edouard MERETTE Edouard MERETTE 54
(Appointed on 18 Jun 2016) (R2016%F6 A 18 HEZF) 4 v
Mr. ZHANG Weidong RETR A
(Appointed on 5 Jul 2016) (R2016%F 7 A5 HEZ(T) v/ 4
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE (D) EFRITHAR
From 12 May 2016, the roles of Chairman and Chief BE2016F5H12H# » KRR TERITH
Executive Officer of the Company are separated. BE s BBERD -
Ms. DUAN Di is the Chairman of the Company who is B#HZ T ARRGEE  HEEERESE
responsible for overseeing the function of the Board. Mr. Bigt o MEBISEE AR RRIITHAEE - BE
CHO Michael Min-kuk is the Chief Executive Officer of the BASEERTMNESEAE -

Company who is responsible to the Board for managing the

business of the Group.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The terms of appointment of the Directors who do not hold
any executive role in the Company are for a period of three
years subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company pursuant to the
Articles of Association and the GEM Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with written
terms of reference. It currently comprises three member, Ms.
DUAN Di and two independent non-executive Directors
namely, Mr. Edouard MERETTE (Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee) and Mr. ZHANG Weidong. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee included,
among other things, (i) formulating, reviewing and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy
and structure for all Directors and members of senior
management; (ii) reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board's corporate goals and objectives; (iii) determining
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and members of senior management; and (iv) making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee held six
meetings during the Reporting Period and four of which
were attended by the former committee members.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed the Group’s remuneration policy and structure and
determined the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors, senior management and certain
employees having regard to comparable companies and
other relevant factors as advised by professional human
resources consultancy firm.
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(G)

The remuneration payable to members of the senior
management during the Reporting Period fell within the
following bands:
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SREEABARREMEOFHMAFRIAT
#HE :

Number of

Senior Management

SREEE A

Nil to HK$5,000,000 Z % 5,000,00078 7T -
HK$5,000,001 to HK$10,000,000 5,000,001 & L% 10,000,000 7% 7T 2
2

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with written
terms of reference. It currently comprises three members,
Ms. DUAN Di (Chairmen of the Nomination Committee) and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Stephen MARKSCHEID and Mr. ZHANG Weidong. The
primary duties of the Nomination Committee covered,
among other things, (i) the reviewing of the structure, size
and composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity of perspectives) of the Board; (ii) identifying
and nominating suitably qualified candidates for
directorship; and (iii) making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or reappointment of Directors. The
Nomination Committee held five meetings during the
Reporting Period and four of which were attended by the
former committee members.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee
reviewed the established policy and procedure for the
nomination and appointment of new Directors, assessed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors
and made recommendations to the Board on the
reappointment of retiring Directors.

In respect of the policy concerning Board diversity, the
Nomination Committee would take into account of the
Group's business model as promulgated by its controlling
shareholders, and consider, among other things, the
educational background, professional and business
experience, profile, gender and age diversity of the Board as
well as the suitability for the businesses of the Group in its
selection of candidates.

(G) REZRE
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The Audit Committee was established with written terms of
reference. It currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors namely, Mr. Stephen MARKSCHEID
(Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Edouard MERETTE
and Mr. ZHANG Weidong in compliance with Rules 5.28
and 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee include, among other things, (i) reviewing
and supervising the financial reporting process; (i) reviewing
internal control as well as risk management systems of the
Group; (iii) reviewing the consolidated financial statements
and the quarterly, interim and annual reports of the Group;
and (iv) reviewing the terms of engagement and scope of
audit work of the internal auditor and external auditor and
ensure their coordination. The Audit Committee held four
meetings during the Reporting Period and one of which was
attended by the former committee members.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee was
engaged in, among other duties, receiving and reviewing
reports from the Internal Auditor, reviewing quarterly,
interim and annual results of the Group and providing
advice and comments thereon to the Board. The Audit
Committee also reviewed the Group’s internal control and
risk management systems and made recommendations to
the Board for improvements. The Audit Committee
considered and approved the terms of engagement and
remuneration of the Internal Auditor and external auditor,
and discussed with them the nature and scope of their
audits before the audits commenced. In discharging its
duties, the Audit Committee met with the Group's
management, Internal Auditor and external auditor several
times during the Reporting Period.

At the meeting held in June 2017, among other things, the
Audit Committee has reviewed this annual report and
recommended it for the Board’s approval.
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() ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS (N HES=
During the Reporting Period, the attendance records of the RAFREE  SEEHFEEEgER &
Directors at Board Meetings, Audit Committee Meetings, “ELZEeen FWLEgeeR ERZE
Remuneration Committee Meetings, Nomination Committee @ N 016 FEREEENS 7080 -
Meetings and the 2016 Annual General Meeting are as
follows:
Number of meetings attended/held
e/ ETEERY
2016
Audit Remuneration  Nomination Annual
Board  Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Name of Directors during the E £ Re 2016 %
Reporting Period i ZEE ZEE ZEE  RRBEF
TRENHESHE EE EE EE EE g
Executive Directors: HTEE:
Ms. DUAN Di Rt
(appointed on 12 May 2016) (R2016F5 R 12 BERT) 414 - 23 22 1/1
Mr. CHO Michael Min-kuk HEELE
(appointed on 12 May 2016) (R2016F 5812 REZ() 44 - - - N
Mr. CHEN Jianfeng Peter RelgEE
(appointed on 17 Jun 2016) (R2016%F6 517 BEZR() 44 - - - n
Ms. ZHANG Yun FEXL
(appointed on 17 Jun 2016) (R20165F6 A 17 BEZIT) 4/4 - - - [
Mr. YEUNG Kai Cheung Patrick BEREE
(appointment lapsed on 17 Jun 2016) (8201656 A178ER) 22 - 414 414 -
Mr. CHAN Hok Leung REREE
(appointment lapsed on 17 Jun 2016) (I8 20166 B 17 BEM) W - - - -
Non-executive Directors: FHAEE .
Mr. XIN Luo Lin FEMEE
(appointment lapsed on 17 Jun 2016) (F83 2016 F 6 A 17 BEM) 22 - 414 444 -
Independent Non-executive Directors: B UHHTEE
Mr. Stephen MARKSCHEID Stephen MARKSCHEID %t &
(appointed on 18 Jun 2016) (R2016F6 A 18 BEZ) 313 33 - 0 0
Mr. Edouard MERETTE Edouard MERETTE % 4
(appointed on 18 Jun 2016) (201656 A 18 BEZ) 33 33 0 - n
Mr. ZHANG Weidong RERLE
(appointed on 5 Jul 2016) (R2016F7 A5 BEZ() 313 313 22 1/1 1/1
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Number of meetings attended/held

HE/ BEERY
2016
Audit Remuneration  Nomination Annual
Board  Committee =~ Committee  Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Name of Directors during the B Hi RE 2016 %
Reporting Period - ZEE ZEE ZE®  RRBEF
AREHHESHE ] 23 EE EE xg
Mr. CHAN Kai Nang MRREREE A
(appointment lapsed on 17 Jun 2016) (FEER 201656 A 17 BIER) Wy 11 414 444 -
Mr. TSUI Pui Yan HRBEE
(resigned on 18 Jun 2016) (R2016%6 A 18 HEHT) 22 11 414 414 -
Mr. Y1 Xiqun RGpEE
(resigned on 6 Apr 2016) (R2016F4 A6 BRI - - 1/1 1/1 -
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL () REEEERAPEE
CONTROL
The Group places high importance on internal control which AEEREEREANNEE  BRLTIAE

is the foundation of the Group's reputation and
maintenance of clients’ confidence. The Board is responsible
for maintaining a sound and effective internal control system
in order to safeguard the interests of the shareholders of the
Company and the assets of the Group against improper use
or disposition, ensuring maintenance of proper books and
records for the provision of reliable financial information,
and ensuring compliance with relevant rules and regulations.
The Board has delegated responsibility to its Audit
Committee to review the Group’s risk management and
internal control matters. The risk management and internal
control systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure in operational systems so that the
Group's objectives can be achieved, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee was assisted by the Internal Auditor,
to assess and review if a sound and effective risk
management and internal control system are in place at
least once a year. The Internal Auditor reported to and
regularly met with the Audit Committee to review internal
audit findings on enterprise risk and internal control matters.
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Risk management system

Based on the Group’s business and operations, Internal
Auditor, using risk-based approach, has identified and
carried out review on four areas covering financial,
operational, strategies and compliance.

The process used by the Internal Auditor comprises the
following phases:

o Identification: understand business objectives, identify
risks that could affect the achievement of objectives,
and the ownership of risks.

° Evaluation: analyze the likelihood and impact of risks
and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

. Management: consider the risk responses, ensure
effective communication to the Audit Committee and
on-going monitor the residual risks.

Based on the report done by the Internal Auditor, no
significant risk was identified during the Reporting Period.

Internal control system

The Group has set up an effective internal control
mechanism which are sufficient to enable the Directors to
make a proper assessment of the financial position and
prospect of the Group.

Internal Auditor has conducted a review of the Group’s
internal control system by conducting interviews,
walkthroughs and tests on the effectiveness of the
procedures, systems and controls established by the Group
in its operating cycles, in particular, revenue and receipt
cycle, treasury management cycle and compliance
management cycle.

With respect to the internal control review done by the
Internal Auditor, no major issues on control failure is noted
during the Reporting Period.
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As of the time of annual report is composed, there is no risk
incident of any kind that have caused direct financial losses
to the Group due to control failure. Hence, the Board has
conducted a review and is of the view that both risk
management and internal control systems are effective and
adequate for the Group to achieve its objectives during the
Reporting Period. The Board will continue to assess the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems taking into consideration of the results of reviews
and audits performed by the Internal Auditor, external
auditor and Audit Committee and making sure that all
significant legal and regulatory requirements are adhered to.

Dissemination of inside information

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside
information and enable a consistent practice of timely,
accurate and complete disclosure of material information of
the Group, the Group has adopted policies and procedures
which sets out guidelines and procedures as well as
measures to handle and disseminate inside information.
With these procedures and measures in place, the Group is
able to control and properly discharge its reporting
obligation, especially in relation to inside information
disclosure obligations, in a timely and effective manner and
in accordance with the requirements under applicable laws.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Reporting Period, the remuneration in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided by the Company’s
external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, were
approximately HK$1.8 million and HK$0.07 million
respectively. The non-audit services were related to the
professional fees for tax compliance and tax consulting
services.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements which
give a true and fair view in accordance with the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The statement of the Company’s auditor about
its reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report”
on pages 59 to 65 of this annual report.

(M) COMPANY SECRETARY

(N)

During the Reporting Period, Ms. CHAN Sau Mui Juanna,
the Company Secretary, undertook no less than fifteen
hours of relevant professional training to update her
knowledge and skills.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Reporting Period.

(L

(M)

(N)
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Convening of extraordinary general meeting
and putting forward proposals

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, any two or more
registered members of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
or any one Shareholder which is a recognised clearing house
(or its nominee(s)) holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company, shall have the
right, by written requisitions, to put forward proposals and
require an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM") to be
convened. Subject to applicable legislations and regulations,
the procedures for Shareholders to convene and put forward
proposals at an EGM are as follows:

1. The written requisitions shall be deposited at the
principal office of the Company in Hong Kong situated
at Suite 5801, Cheung Kong Center, 2 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong (for the attention of the Company
Secretary), specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionists.

2. The Company will then verify the request with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong and
upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will then ask the Board
to convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in
accordance with the regulatory requirements and the
Articles of Association to all the Shareholders. If the
request has been verified as not in order, the
Shareholders concerned will be advised of the
outcome and an EGM will not be convened as
requested.
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3. If within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene the
meeting to be held within a further 21 days, the
requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may convene the general
meeting but any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the
date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board to convene the meeting shall
be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Proposing a person for election as a Director

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, no person shall,
unless recommended by the Board, be eligible for election
to the office of Director at any general meeting unless
during the period, which shall be at least seven days,
commencing no earlier than the day after the despatch of
the notice of the meeting appointed for such election and
ending no later than seven days prior to the date of such
meeting, there has been given to the Company Secretary
notice in writing by a Shareholder (not being the person to
be proposed), entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for
which such notice is given, of his/her intention to propose
such person for election and also notice in writing signed by
the person to be proposed of his/her willingness to be
elected.

The written notice must state the full name of the person to
be proposed for election as a Director, as well as the
person’s biographical details as required by Rule 17.50(2) of
the GEM Listing Rules. Upon receipt of the notice, the
Company will assess whether or not it is necessary to
adjourn the meeting of the election to give Shareholders at
least 10 business days to consider the proposed
appointment.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of
transparency and employs a policy of open and timely
disclosure of relevant information to its Shareholders. The
Board strives to encourage and maintain regular
communication with Shareholders through various means.
The Company encourages all Shareholders to attend general
meetings, which provide opportunities for direct dialogue
between the Board and the Shareholders, and for
Shareholders to stay informed of the Group’s strategy and
goals.

At the annual general meeting held 10 August 2016, the
Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial
Officer, the chairman of each of Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees and representatives from the
auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, were
present to attend to possible questions from Shareholders.

The Company updates its Shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its notices,
announcements and circulars, as well as quarterly, interim
and annual reports. The corporate website maintained by
the Company at www.zzcapitalinternational.com provides
an effective communication platform to the public and the
Shareholders. The Company is also in discussion with public
relations consultants with a view to engaging a professional
firm to enhance dialogue and communication with
Shareholders and investors. Shareholders and investors may
at any time send their enquiries to the Board by addressing
them to the Company Secretary by post at Suite 5801,
Cheung Kong Center, 2 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
or by email at infohk@zzcapitalinternational.com.
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To the shareholders of ZZ Capital International Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of ZZ Capital International
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 66 to 158, which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2017;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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B M A% &

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

We identified one key audit matter in our audit and it is
summarised as follows:
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Key Audit Matter
Investment Advisory Management Fees

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group earned
investment advisory and management fees of approximately
HK$194 million from its intermediate holding company. The
amount represented a significant portion of the total investment
advisory and management fees, recognition of which was subject
to the intermediate holding company receiving more than half of
the total proceeds from the disposal of investments managed by
the Group according to the investment advisory and management
agreement (the “Proceeds”).

60

BRETEER
REZHEEE

REZE2017F3A31BIEFE EEEKHE
PRGN B BREVIE & S R M B FE & 4Y 194,000,000 7%
Lo R EREBREZAREEEBRBNERS
ERZEREEAREEBIURN B EIER
AIEEREREZAREE KA D
EEBEENRENMSRIEEE —FI £
ZEMBSHAE]) -

o >

—~
—



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

2016/17 Annual Report 3
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Key Audit Matter

We focused on this area because the receipt of Proceeds was
outside the control of the Group and there was significant
management judgement involved in assessing whether the receipt
of Proceeds has occurred and timing of its collection for the
purpose of recognising investment advisory and management
fees.

The key terms of the agreement, recognition criteria and
management judgement involved are set out in notes 3, 5 and 28
respectively.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures in relation to the appropriateness of
significant management judgement on revenue recognition
included the following:

o Understood and evaluated management’s criteria for
recognition of the investment advisory and management
fees by reference to the investment advisory and
management agreement;

o Assessed management’s judgement on whether the receipt
of Proceeds has occurred and timing of collection of the
Proceeds through enquiry with management and inspection
of relevant supporting documents including the relevant sale
and purchase contract and public announcements relating
to the disposal of the investments;

o Tested the mathematical accuracy of the investment advisory
and management fees calculation; and

o Checked correspondence with the intermediate holding
company and bank statements for subsequent settlement of
the recognised investment advisory and management fees.

Based on the procedures performed, we found that
management’s judgement applied in recognising the investment
advisory and management fees was supportable by available
evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Poon Tak Cheong, Raymond.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 14 June 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GEETHEWER

31 March 2017 201743 H31H

Fifteen months

Year ended ended
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
BZ H=
201793 A31H 20163 A31H
IEFE IE+RM@A
Note HK$'000 HK$°000
Bat FETT FEIT
Revenue A 5 213,695 164,252
Net investment (loss)/income W& (BR),/ WA R 5 (21) 132
Interest income FEUA 5 2,789 4,077
Hipl A K (ER),
Other income and net (losses)/gains W F 58 5 (96) 150
REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME WA RE MUK A 5 216,367 168,611
Operating expenses KR (148,495) (42,728)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RREE A& F 6 67,872 125,883
Income tax credit/(expense) FiiggiEe,(Ak) 9 11,310 (13,210)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD FR,HREFR 79,182 112,673
Other comprehensive income HAth 2 E A = =
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR FRHHREEBALEE
THE YEAR/PERIOD 79,182 112,673
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ZAATEEREREZEA
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE ELsRER
COMPANY 11
Basic (HK cents) AR GBI 2.23 4.50
Diluted (HK cents) BEE OB 2.23 4.44
The notes on pages 72 to 158 are integral part of these 2EE 158 EMMEALERE B REAA
consolidated financial statements. 5 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mE MR R R

31 March 2017 201743 A31H

As at 31 March As at 31 March

2017 2016
12017 & R2016 4
3A31H 3A31H
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B et FETT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Equipment B4 12 1,992 2,481
Intangible asset EEE 13 - 866
Deposits bioara i5 36,083 100
Total non-current assets IEMENE EBTE 38,075 3,447
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Other assets and receivables HAMEE K& EWR IR 17 7,946 2,019
Investments at fair value through BAFEREBRRIEN
profit or loss ®E 18 115 140
Cash held on behalf of clients REEPIEEFEZIRS 19 217 215
Prepaid tax TR BN 1,238 =
Trade receivables Z 5 WA 16 8,266 128,939
Cash and bank balances H& MIRITH 20 964,281 787,856
Total current assets TRENE EETE 982,063 919,169
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEME
Trade payables B SR IE 21 403 645
Other payables and accruals HipE T E R EET & A 22 47,194 15,882
Amount due to an intermediate holding
company FET A R AR A B FIR 28(e) 272 -
Tax payable FERTTRIE 26 13,028
Total current liabilities mBR AR 47,895 29,555
NET CURRENT ASSETS nBEEFE 934,168 889,614
Net assets BESE 972,243 893,061
The notes on pages 72 to 158 are integral part of these Z£72EZ=158HKW T AILZHGEMERENA
consolidated financial statements. AERS o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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31 March 2017 201743 H31H

I

As at 31 March As at 31 March

2017 2016
#2017 F 72016 F
3A31H 3A31H
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt e FHET FET
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of the  Z&QFEE AELES
Company

Issued capital BRI 23 35,505 35,505
Reserves M 25 936,738 857,556
Total equity WEm4aER 972,243 893,061
Total assets BERE 1,020,138 922,616
Total equity and liabilities MmN EERRE 1,020,138 922,616

The financial statements on pages 66 to 158 were approved by 566 BZE 5 158 B ¥ 5 #m&kN2017F6 H14HE
the Board of Directors on 14 June 2017 and were signed on its BEF&H#/E - WHUTREREE -

behalf.
CHO Michael Min-kuk CHEN Jiangfeng Peter
HEE R 2 $%
Director Director
EFE EBEFE

The notes on pages 72 to 158 are integral part of these $£72EZF 158 EMKI T AESEAMBEHRENA
consolidated financial statements. BB °

68



uITY
GERBESBXR

31 March 2017 201743 A31H

Attributable to owners of the Company

KA RRE AL
Share Share
Issued  premium Contributed option  Retained
capital account surplus reserve profits Total

BRIRA RORER HARR RARERE  FEER H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fifat FET FET TAT TAT TATL FAET
(note 23) (note 25) (note 25)  (note 24(a))
(Brz223)  (Wat2s)  (WE25)  (Wat24@)

At 1 January 2015 R2015F1 418 14,515 69,464 9,000 7,809 29,638 130,426

Total comprehensive income for HnzERAEE

the period - - - - 112,673 112,673
Equity-settled share option gL SRR ELHE
arrangements 24 - - - 465 - 465
Allotment of new shares BRENTEBEEH R -
pursuant to;
Pre-IPO share option BRAREERRRE
scheme FiE 23 682 21,232 - (8,274) - 13,640
New Shares Placing Agreement R ERZ 23 4,000 151,040 - - - 155,040
Subscription Agreement A= 23 16,308 469,658 - - - 48596
Share issuance expenses BNETES - (5,149) = = = (5,149)
At 31 March 2016 and R2016E3A318R
1 April 2016 201664818 35,505 706,245 9,000 - 142,311 893,061

Total comprehensive income for ERZEYAER
the year - - - - 79,182 79,182

At 31 March 2017 R2017€3A31H 35,505 706,245 9,000 = 221,493 972,243

The notes on pages 72 to 158 are integral part of these #72HZ 158 B it AL E4RE T B REMNE
consolidated financial statements. KEB5 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mae SEHERER

31 March 2017 201743 H31H

Fifteen months

Year ended ended
31 March 31 March
2017 2016

BE BE

201738318 201693 A318
LEE IFTHEA

Note HK$’000 HK$'000
k23 FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXBENRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B 7% AT i A 67,872 125,883
Adjustments for: MATRIEEL R
Interest income FEBA (2,789) (4,077)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of equipment &R BRI (M) 124 (150)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HERBRAIKER 341 -
Depreciation e 12 1,188 1,371
Net reversal of impairment loss on trade B o2 5 RUGRERNRERSRE
receivables JFE (791) (250)
Impairment on equipment SR E 12 319 -
Fair value loss on investments at fair value E’&?{EBATEﬁiﬁlJﬁEE’U&E
through profit or loss, net NTHEER % 25 48
Equity-settled share option expense R E N \HXTE ﬁ'ﬁi - 465
66,289 123,290
Increase in deposits BRE L (35,983) -
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables B S RWGER D,/ (3 m) 121,464 (126,031)
(Increase)/decrease in other assets and H & E N EA
receivables (Bm),/ > (5,927) 7,255
Decrease in investments at fair value through & A FER B2 XTI IR
profit or loss RERD = 6,085
Increase in cash held on behalf of clients REFHAZIRSEM (2) (170)
Decrease in trade payables B 5 ENFIBRD (237) (57)
Increase in other payables and accruals HAb RSB R EAT & A2 0 31,312 10,846
Increase in amount due to an intermediate FE A AR R AR A B FRIRAE N
holding company 272 -
Cash generated from operations KA EIEFTSIR G 177,188 21,218
Hong Kong profits tax paid ERNEBNET (2,930) (818)
Net cash flows from operating activities REEBMBRE 2T 174,258 20,400
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZDHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of equipment BER 12 (2,142) (467)
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HEH B A RIFSHIE 28 520 -
The notes on pages 72 to 158 are integral part of these Z£72EBZ158HKWTAILZHGEMERENAE
consolidated financial statements. BERD ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERTRER

31 March 2017 20

1763 A31H

Fifteen months

Year ended ended
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
S H=E
2017%3A318 201663 A31H
LEE IH+HEA
Note HK$’000 HK$000
frat FET FET
Proceeds from the disposal of equipment HERBREHIE 1,000 150
Interest received BUF B 2,789 4,375
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits with REARREIHAZRN
original maturity of more than =EAAMEBRER
three months when acquired A,/ (3850) 20 43,729 (57,745)
Net cash flows from/(used in) BREEZEME/(FTR) RS
investing activities mE 45,896 (53,687)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  ~ RIEZBNERERE
Proceeds from issue of new shares BT TS 50A 23 = 654,646
Share issuance expenses BRin TR 23 = (5,149)
Net cash flows from financing activities BEEZDMEReNEFE = 649,497
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH BERASEB/YMEMTEE
EQUIVALENTS 220,154 616,210
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FH/ BNRE KRS EEY
year/period 669,788 53,578
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF EXR/HWABEERBAEZEEY
YEAR/PERIOD 889,942 669,788
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH H&RBRELEBYEBRIT
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B4 NIRT1TES 20 545,007 21,747
Time deposits FHATE 20 419,274 766,109
Cash and bank balances as stated in the REPBIREFFENE S
consolidated statement of financial position RARITHE R 964,281 787,856
Time deposits with original maturity of more  REARRZIHA LR ={E A
than three months when acquired R HTZ 3 20 (74,339) (118,068)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the HEReREXRTHENE S
consolidated statement of cash flows MREEEY 889,942 669,788
The notes on pages 72 to 158 are integral part of these B a2 ey 48

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RARME

31 March 2017 201743 H31H
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

77 Capital International Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5
January 2010 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961 as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
registered address of the Company is P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company has changed its name from Asian Capital
Holdings Limited to ZZ Capital International Limited on 10
August 2016. The shares of the Company have been listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 18 June 2010 (the “Listing”).

The principal activity of the Company is investments holding.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the provision of
corporate advisory services and related activities, investment
advisory and asset management. The Group has also started
to identify alternative investments opportunities globally.

On 27 January 2016, the Company announced a change to
its financial year end date from 31 December to 31 March.
As a result of this, these financial statements cover the full
year ended 31 March 2017. The corresponding comparative
amounts comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2016, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the fifteen months ended 31
March 2016. Accordingly they may not be directly
comparable with the amounts shown for the year ended 31
March 2017.

As at 31 March 2017, the directors considered that the
Company’s immediate holding company was Jinhui Capital
Company Limited (“Jinhui”) and the Company’s ultimate
holding company was F/8RE (It R) EXREEBR A A
(Zhonghai Sheng Feng (Beijing) Capital Management
Company Limited*).

* The company name is registered in Chinese only, the translated
English name is only used in these consolidated financial statements
for identification purpose.
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REEABEERAR(ARR])S—RER
201051 A5 BRIERSREEMFE 22ER

ADE (1961 FEPIE 3 - &BE& G RIER]) £
FEMETMKINEREBRDAE - AR
A v it #% = #b ik A P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman
Islands °

20165 E8 A 10 AR A KERBEHE
DEARERARNATEELABREERA

Al e KRR MHN2010F6 A18HERH
BAXSRARAR ([BRFT])AIZER (T4
ERD EmMAT EmD e

RRAWEBREBRR/REZER -

ARBIREMBAR (MR AEE]) 2
e ERHE L FERRE LARER - REK
AREEEERE - AEETERAENEIK
MESBRERSE

R2016F 18278 AAREMEHTKF
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2016/17 Annual Report &%}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"”) (which include all HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the "HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of the new
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for investments at fair value through profit or loss, which
have been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is also the
Company'’s functional currency. All values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 3.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the
first time in the current period consolidated financial
statements.

o Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint
operations — Amendments to HKFRS 11

o Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation
and amortisation — Amendments to HKAS 16 and

HKAS 38
o Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 cycle,
and

3 Disclosure initiative — amendments to HKAS 1.

The adoption of these amendments did not have any impact
on the current period or any prior period and is not likely to
affect future periods.

Other standards, amendments and interpretations which are
effective for the period are not material to the Group.
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2.2
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2.3

74

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

A number of new standards and amendments to standards
and interpretations are effective for annual periods
beginning after 1 April 2016, and have not been applied in
preparing these consolidated financial statements. None of
these is expected to have a significant effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group, except for
the following:

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’

The new standard addresses the classification, measurement
and derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities,
introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new
impairment model for financial assets.

HKFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement
model and establishes three primary measurement
categories for financial assets: amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (“OCI"”) and fair value
through profit or loss. The basis of classification depends on
the entity’s business model and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset. Investments in equity
instruments are required to be measured at fair value
through profit or loss with the irrevocable option at
inception to present changes in fair value in OCI not
recycling.

While the Group has yet to undertake a detailed assessment
of the classification and measurement of financial assets,
equity investments currently measured at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL) would likely continue to be measured on
the same basis under HKFRS 9.

Accordingly, the Group does not expect the new standard
to have a significant impact on the classification and
measurement of its financial assets.
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NOTIéS TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ (continued)

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting for
financial liabilities, as the new requirements only affect the
accounting for financial liabilities that are designated at fair
value through profit or loss and the Group does not have
any such liabilities. The derecognition rules have been
transferred from HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement and have not been changed.

The new hedge accounting rules will align the accounting
for hedging instruments more closely with the Group'’s risk
management practices. As a general rule, more hedge
relationships might be eligible for hedge accounting, as the
standard introduces a more principles-based approach. The
Group is not adopting a hedge accounting and thus it does
not expect to have a significant impact to the Group.

The new impairment model requires the recognition of
impairment provisions based on expected credit losses (ECL)
rather than only incurred credit losses as is the case under
HKAS 39. It applies to financial assets classified at amortised
cost, debt instruments measured at FVOCI, contract assets
under HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers,
lease receivables, loan commitments and certain financial
guarantee contracts. While the Group has not yet
undertaken a detailed assessment of how its impairment
provisions would be affected by the new model, it may
result in an earlier recognition of credit losses.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure
requirements and changes in presentation. These are
expected to change the nature and extent of the Group’s
disclosures about its financial instruments particularly in the
year of the adoption of the new standard.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

76

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ (continued)

HKFRS 9 must be applied for financial years commencing on
or after 1 January 2018. Based on the transitional provisions
in the completed HKFRS 9, early adoption in phases was
only permitted for annual reporting periods beginning
before 1 February 2015. After that date, the new rules must
be adopted in their entirety. The Group does not intend to
adopt HKFRS 9 before its mandatory date.

HKFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with
customers’

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the recognition
of revenue. This will replace HKAS 18 which covers contracts
for goods and services and HKAS 11 which covers
construction contracts. The new standard is based on the
principle that revenue is recognised when control of a good
or service transfers to a customer. The standard permits
either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach for the adoption.

Management is currently assessing the effects of applying
the new standard on the Group's financial statements and
has identified the following areas that are likely to be
affected:

o revenue from service — the application of HKFRS 15
may result in the identification of separate
performance obligations which could affect the timing
of the recognition of revenue.

o accounting for certain costs incurred in fulfilling a
contract — certain costs which are currently expensed
may need to be recognised as an asset under HKFRS
15, and

o rights of return HKFRS 15 requires separate
presentation on the consolidated statement of
financial position of the right to recover the goods
from the customer and the refund obligation.
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NOTIéS TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with
customers’ (continued)

At this stage, the Group is not able to estimate the impact
of the new rules on the Group’s financial statements. The
Group will make more detailed assessments of the impact
over the next twelve months.

HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years commencing on
or after 1 January 2018. At this stage, the Group does not
intend to adopt the standard before its effective date.

HKFRS 16, ‘Leases’

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being recognised on
the consolidated statement of financial position, as the
distinction between operating and finance leases is removed.
Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the
leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are
recognised. The only exceptions are short-term and low-
value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for Group'’s
operating leases. As at the reporting date, the Group has
non-cancellable operating lease commitments of
approximately HK$87,063,000, see note 26. However, the
Group has not yet determined to what extent these
commitments will result in the recognition of an asset and a
liability for future payments and how this will affect the
Group's profit and classification of cash flows.

Some of the commitments may be covered by the exception
for short-term and low value leases and some commitments
may relate to arrangements that will not qualify as leases
under HKFRS 16.

The new standard is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2019. At this stage, the
Group does not intend to adopt the standard before its
effective date.
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31 March 2017 201743 H31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 23 EEMEERERNEBIBER
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING EHEA ()
STANDARDS (continued)
HKFRS 16, ‘Leases’ (continued) EBAVBREERF 165 [FHEI(E)
There are no other HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC) interpretations that Hth # R A S E B SR S E R EF A ()
are not yet effective that would be expected to have a By KREREZES ) R EBHIY TE2Y

material impact on the Group. AREBBERTE -
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERSHBEHRE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.4.1 Subsidiaries 241 MIEB AT

(a) Business combinations

(a) ¥HEEOf

78

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s profit or loss to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s investments in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less any impairment losses, if any.

Inter-company transactions and balances
between Group companies are eliminated.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4.1 Subsidiaries (continued)

(a) Business combinations (continued)

Acquisitions of businesses not under common
control are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is the fair values at the
acquisition date of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred (including contingent
consideration arrangement) and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs
are expensed in the income statement as
incurred.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If after assessment, the fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in income
statement as a bargain purchase gain.
Subsequently, goodwill is subject to impairment
testing.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

80

2.4.1 Subsidiaries (continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combinations (continued)

Where the consideration transferred by the
Group in a business combination includes assets
or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at fair value at the
acquisition date and considered as part of the
consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments being made against goodwill or
gain on bargain purchase. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from
additional information obtained during the
measurement period about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition
date. Measurement period does not exceed one
year from the acquisition date.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to
its fair value at the date when control is lost,
with the change in carrying amount recognised
in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. It means the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

24 EREFBERME )

2.4.2 Equipment and depreciation 242 BRERFE

Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of
an item of equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts
as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20% to 50%
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives
and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of equipment and any significant part initially
recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in profit or loss in the year/period the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4.3 Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are
not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the
useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for on a prospective basis.

2.4.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised
only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BRRME

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

(continued)

An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with
the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

24 EREFBERME @)

2.4.5 Investments and other financial assets 245 RERHMEMEE

84

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and loans and receivables. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value
plus transaction costs, except in the case of financial
assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

The Group's financial assets include accrued income
and trade receivables, deposits and other receivables
investments at fair value through profit or loss, cash
held on behalf of clients and cash and cash
equivalents.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

24 EREFBERME )

2.4.5 Investments and other financial assets 245 RERHMESHMEE (&)

(continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for
the purpose of sale in the near term. Financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in revenue in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
within “Net investment income/(loss)” in the period in
which they arise. These net fair value changes do not
include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets. Interest income is recognised on an
accrual basis using the effective interest rate method
by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria under
HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4.5 Investments and other financial assets

(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (continued)

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (held for trading) to assess
whether the intent to sell them in the near term is still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group
is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive
markets and management’s intent to sell them in the
foreseeable future significantly changes, the Group
may elect to reclassify these financial assets. The
reclassification from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss to loans and receivables or held-
to-maturity investments depends on the nature of the
assets. This evaluation does not affect any financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
using the fair value option at designation as these
instruments cannot be reclassified after initial
recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance income in profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment on loans and receivables is recognised in
profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

24 EREFBERME )

2.4.5 Investments and other financial assets 245 RERHMESHMEE (&)

(continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset, it evaluates if and to what
extent it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4.6 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss
event has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that
are individually significant, or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EREFTBEME @)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4.6 Impairment of financial assets (continued) 246 SREEREE)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost HEBIEK ARz @& E (&)
(continued)
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss WEREFERRNLIERERE 8
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured ERESERZEESEFEERGR K
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount KELRE(TEREMAELERARRE
and the present value of estimated future cash flows EEE)IRERNEBETE - fh5hAR®k
(excluding future credit losses that have not yet been BenRENRENLEREERRE
incurred). The present value of the estimated future SR K (BN AR =T E B A) T)
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original BHIRIE Y - MERF R A FHF X
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate HEEMBEEENIIIRX AEET
computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable BRFI= -

interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through EEMNERAESBEBEEER -
the use of an allowance account and the amount of ERESENEBRRER - FBEWRAE
the loss is recognised in profit or loss. Interest income BRERABREMER - WHERB
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying SREEEBANMERARESTREDN
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used F B ET o B 51 % FE R GRIE 3 [ (£ fa]
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of BEBRHER T2 E KRR E HIER S
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables AT AMBERRE R KD H
together with any associated allowance are written off BEREER o

when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the fid £ 12 BRREME 5T BB B 18 & 58 A A
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases RIMEEIEENSE MBI
because of an event occurring after the impairment Bl SE BT HER R BB 18 5 1B T 2 7
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment R T LA L 3 3 8 o (R 1B 48 Uk
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance B - WESEFFABRERA

account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery
is credited to profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

24 EREFBERME @)

2.4.7 Financial liabilities 247 SRERE

90

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost. The
Group determines the classification of its financial
liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value plus, in the case of loans and borrowings,
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables
and other payables and accruals.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

24 EREFBERME )

2.4.7 Financial liabilities (continued) 247 cREE (&)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

2.4.8 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

2.4.9 Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded
in active markets is determined by reference to quoted
market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for
long positions and ask price for short positions),
without any deduction for transaction costs. For
financial instruments where there is no active market,
the fair value is determined using appropriate
valuation techniques. Such techniques include using
recent arm'’s length market transactions; reference to
the current market value of another instrument which
is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow
analysis; and option pricing models.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

92

2410 Provisions

241

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when: the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand and at
banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

24 EREFBERME )

2412 Revenue recognition 2412 WARERR

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the BROEF =B A RERANE B RIKA
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when BEREH B FEIRIATEERR
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the g A

following bases:

(a

corporate advisory income, when the underlying
services have been provided or the underlying
transactions have been completed, in
accordance with the terms of the service
agreement;

placing and underwriting service income/
commission, when the related services are
provided or the relevant significant acts have
been completed in accordance with the terms of
the agreement or deal mandate;

investment advisory and management income, is
recognised in the accounting period in which
the services are rendered and all relevant
conditions have been fulfilled in accordance with

b SRR M A TR I AR 7% 1o 2 ik
RE IR HAERE AR 2 B SRR RE
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HERGRIE z 2t IR R - TR
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the terms of the agreement or mandate. The EEWEFTEIRETE - RIER
calculation of the management fees and Eq»E’j%xﬁmu’a]&gi%Tﬁ (&%&
performance fees is subject to the investment BALREREWE]  EREBERT

advisory and management agreement. Under
the current investment advisory and
management agreement, management fees are
recognised on a time-apportionment basis with
reference to the net asset value of the
investment portfolio managed by the Group,
while performance fees are recognised upon
disposal of assets in the investment portfolio
advised by the Group and when the fees
become unconditional to the Group; and

securities dealing commission, on a trade date
basis, or the right to receive such income have
been established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

24 EREFBERME @)

24.13 Income tax 2413 FRBH

94

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except when the deferred tax
liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and in respect of taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
24.13 Income tax (continued)

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2414 Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments
("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by using a binomial model, further details of which are
given in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-
vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms
of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payment
transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee
as measured at the date of modification.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

24 EREFBERME )

2414 Share-based payment transactions 2414 BORXARE (E)

(continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. This includes any award
where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification
of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital and/or share premium.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share.

2415 Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2416 Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. All differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are taken
to profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. The gain or loss arising on retranslation of
a non-monetary item is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation differences on item whose
fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BRRME

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2416 Foreign currencies (continued)

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

(a

()

assets and liabilities for each consolidated
statement of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that
consolidated statement of financial position;

income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated
at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

2417 Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of

the Group;

or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXREFBEBE )
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2417 Related parties (continued) 2011 BBEAL(E)
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following (b) BATAERE G BFESTHMER
conditions applies: 1645 -
(i) the entity and the Group are members of () H%EBHAEEEBER %
the same group; El:0)p =N
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture iy —HEBAS—HEEMD
of the other entity (or of a parent, e NTIRAEELE (HS
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other —HEENERAF - WE
entity); NCIEACEN)-- VNCIDRE
(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures (iy ZEBHEAAEEAER—F
of the same third party; =HWMEERE
(iv) the entity is a post-employment benefit vy ZEBAAEENHERE
plan for the benefit of employees of either ElEEENEEIMERR
the Group or an entity related to the MER S BB R B AETE
Group;
(v)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled (v) ZEEX@E )E% Z ATz
by a person identified in (a); and il sk 2 RE I
(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant Vi) @OHEZRZATHZER
influence over the entity or is a member of BEATENSBZER
the key management personnel of the (HZEBHNERA)HE
entity (or of a parent of the entity). TEREKE -
2418 Operating leases 2418 REHEE
Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of EEHEAEMNEB RIS B R LE RS
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are BROBAANBLIIELERE - &
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is AEBAEEAAR  RELEHEETH
the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net FEATFR & (FORR A H FH A URER #Y (T ] 28
of any incentives received from the lessor are charged B B FRESHRNERSR S -
to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease

terms.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Revenue recognition in relation to investment
advisory and management income

The Group is entitled to either performance fees or
management fees, whichever is higher, in every calendar
year under the current investment advisory and
management agreement (“IAM Agreement”) dated 2
February 2016. When service is rendered, management fees
and/or performance fees are recognised as revenue when it
is probable there is an economic inflow to the entity and the
amount can be reliably measured. When performance fees
are contingent on a future event which is outside the control
of the entity, management considered the contingent
portion is only recognised when the contingent event has
happened and there is no uncertainty on revenue
recognition. While the quantum of performance fees can be
ascertained upon disposal of assets in the investment
portfolio, management fees are only recognised on a time-
apportionment basis with reference to the net asset value of
the investment portfolio managed by the Group by the end
of each calendar year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

(continued)
Judgements (continued)

Revenue recognition in relation to investment
advisory and management income (continued)

According to the IAM Agreement, the remuneration for the
investment advisory and management services would be
capped at the higher of management fees and performance
fees on a calendar year basis. Management is therefore
required to:

(@) estimate the management fees to be earned from for
each quarter end;

(b)  ascertain whether the performance fees income during
each calendar year would be higher than the
estimated management fees for the same year; and

(0 whether a portion of performance fees received/
receivable as at 31 March is related to management
service to be performed from 1 April to 31 December
of the subsequent financial year and to be accounted
for as deferred revenue

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group maintains an allowance for the estimated loss
arising from the inability of its customers to make the
required payments. The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a
trade receivable is impaired. The Group makes its estimates
based on the ageing of its trade receivable balances,
customers’ creditworthiness, and historical write-off
experience as well as whether there are possible disputes. If
the financial condition of its customers deteriorates and/or
disputes arise so that the actual impairment loss may be
higher than expected, the Group will be required to revise
the basis of making the allowance and its future results will
be affected.
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NOTIéS TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

(continued)
Judgements (continued)
Impairment of trade receivables (continued)

On 13 March 2017, the subsidiary of the Group, Asian
Capital (Corporate Finance) Limited (“ACCF”) entered into a
supplemental appointment letter with a director of ACCF
which gives ACCF the right to require the director of ACCF
to acquire from ACCF any receivables of ACCF, which
remains outstanding as at the end of the term of his
appointment in June 2017 and which has not been
recovered in full by ACCF, at net book value. Management
also takes into account such arrangement when assessing
the recoverability of the receivables outstanding at 31 March
2017. Refer to note 28 (f) for further details.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's principal businesses are in the provision of
corporate advisory services and related activities, investment
advisory and asset management. During the year, the Group
has also started to identify alternative investments globally.
The executive directors have been identified as the chief
operating decision-maker (“CODM"), responsible for
making strategic decisions, allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments. During
the year, the Group has been going through its business
transformation and management has reviewed the
operating segments presented to the CODM. The CODM,
taking into account the maturity of the Group’s various
businesses, its operations and related resources allocation,
considers the Group to have one key business focus during
the year. The reportable segment identified is the provision
of corporate advisory services and investment advisory and
asset management (“Corporate advisory and IAM").
“Others” segment consists of other corporate activities and
shared services. Information provided to the CODM is
measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated financial statements. The CODM expects as the
Group's business continues to evolve, the appropriateness
of operating segments and reportable segments will need to
be reviewed in due course.
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REDIER

REB N E BRB DR X R R R 248
A REFHANEEERE - RAFE -
AREBTRARERYERBRE - RITE
FOHREAREIRLERRE ([EREERK
E]) AREFHRBAR  2EBEREFE
REDHHRER - RAFE - AEBIEEHE
TEBELY  MERECRIREREER
REZINZEEDH - BRI AKEBIRE
BHRAIEE REEMABERSE - £
ELEARER/ANEERNAFEA —Ex
REBEH - BRI A 2D A AREHE
EBERRY - ZREFALEEER ([DRXE
RINMIRERAREEER]) - [HEit] DEE
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BRER—H - TBELERRERY  BEX
BTGB E - NREBEKHERRTEED
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

4, REHIER (&)

(continued)
Corporate
advisory
and IAM Others Total
TtEERR
REZH
HEEERE Hith st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FAEIT FAEIT
Revenue from external customers & B 4NEEE F 89U A 213,695 = 213,695
Segment profit/(loss) before RETIS AT D &
income tax wm A, (EE) 192,752 (124,880) 67,872
Other segment information: HihpEpELR -
Total assets BEE 248,736 771,402 1,020,138
Total liabilities wmaE 10,982 36,913 47,895
Interest income ISV PN 464 2,325 2,789
Depreciation e 1,060 128 1,188
Geographical information HEER

(a) Revenue from external customers

(a) KEINBEFHRA

Fifteen months

Year ended ended

31 March 31 March

2017 2016

BZE2017% HZE2016%F

3A31H 3H31H

LHFE IE+FE@EA

HK$’000 HK$°000

FHETT FEIT

Hong Kong B 19,460 33,515
Mainland China LIPS 194,233 128,937
South Africa [FIES - 1,800
Cayman Islands FERHS 2 -
213,695 164,252

The revenue information above is based on the
location of the customers.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Geographical information (continued)

(b) Non-current assets

31 March 2017 201743 A31H

HEE R (E)

(b) ¥ HBEE

At At

31 March 31 March

2017 2016

R2017 F #2016 F

3A31H 3A31H

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Hong Kong B8 1,412 3,347
The United Kingdom HE 464 -
The United States of America X[ 116 -
1,992 3,347

The non-current asset information is based on the
location of assets and excludes financial instruments
(e.g. rental and other deposits).

Information about major customer

Revenue from the major customer amounting to 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue is set out below:

FRBEEEMNEREEMELE
BEXTEFEeRmIA(NESREME

&) e

FREFEH

KEXERP(EARKERAR10% A E)

HUAE ST

Fifteen months

Year ended ended

31 March 31 March

2017 2016

BZE2017F HZE20164F

3A31H 3A31H

IEEE IE+E@EA

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FEIT

Customer A (note) ZFEAK ) 193,983 127,474

Note: the Customer A is related party and the transactions have been

disclosed in the note 28(b).

Ktet - BEARRBET - MARMRSERHTEE28(0)HE

105




BREBEARAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BUBBRME

31 March 2017 201743 H31H

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5. WAREMWA
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and other income is as REFWAREMBADITWT :
follows:
Fifteen months
Year ended ended
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
BE2017% HZE2016%F
3A31H 3H31H
LHEE IE+FH@EA
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Revenue A
Corporate advisory income PEBEBWA 18,194 33,623
Placing and underwriting service income/ B & R B#HREW A HE
commission 1,518 3,154
Investment advisory and management KEBANERERA
income 193,983 127,474
Securities dealing commission BHERZHE = 1
213,695 164,252
Net investment (loss)/income B’E (58 WA FRE
Net fair value loss on financial assets BEATEREBERRIIEZ 2/
measured at fair value through profit or BEZ AT EEEFHE
loss (25) (48)
Realised gains on financial assets BRAFEREBERRIIRZ
measured at fair value through RLE E R H AR
profit or loss and other investments - 180
Dividend income &2 B 8RN 4 =
(21) 132
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Fifteen months

Year ended ended
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
BZ2017F HZE2016%F
3H31H 3H31H
IEFE IEt+HaM@A
HK$’000 HK$°000
FEIT FET
Interest income FEUWA
Interest income from financial assets KESMEEZFBIA
— Bank deposits — RITER 2,789 1,308
— Listed investments — EmiRE = 43
— Loans receivables — EWER = 2,726
2,789 4,077
Other income and net (losses)/gains HW AR (BE) W FE
Loss on disposal of subsidiary (note 28(c))  H &M B A B HIEE (H1:£ 28(c)) (341) =
(Loss)/gain on disposal of equipment HeEREN (EER) ks (124) 150
Gain on exchange difference b i, = RE e 369 -
(96) 150
Revenue and other income g A R E b g A 216,367 168,611
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

6. BRBiAEF

AEE BB RS RS GEA) TH%

(crediting): g :
Fifteen months
Year ended ended
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
BZE2017F HZE2016F
3A31H 3A31H
LEE IETRMEA
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
HtaE FET FEIT
Depreciation e 12 1,188 1,371
Operating lease expense KEHERX 9,515 4,046
Auditor's remuneration Z SR <
Audit fees FIZER 1,800 800
Non-audit fees FEZEA 68 140
Professional fees BEEEH 15,297 1,885
Net reversal of impairment loss on 0 2 5 R BGRE R E
trade receivables B8 558 (791) (250)
Impairment on equipment RAERE 319 -
Value-added tax and surtax (note a) AR KM IR
(Hiat(a)) (8,566) 8,566
Employee benefit expense (including EERMFAX (24
directors’ remuneration (note 7)): BEHM (L)) -
Wages, salaries, allowances and IE -5< 2K
bonuses TE4T 92,572 20,352
Equity-settled share option expense s e 45 E A SR AR A
H - 465
Pension scheme contributions RREBEEIHR
(defined contribution scheme) (EEEHERETE) 571 390
Note a:  Pursuant to the relevant tax rules and requlations in China, the tax Mita: REFEEAHBHERREE HEREPE

payable on income derived by non-resident enterprises (in this
case ACCF) should be withheld at source, with the payer (in this
case 18 & X E H# A R 2 7] (Zhongzhi Capital Management
Company Limited*) (“Zhongzhi Capital”) as the withholding agent
but the actual tax outcome might vary upon settlement. Thus,
management took the view that any value-added tax and surtax
amounting to approximately HK$8,566,000 arising from fee
receivable from Zhongzhi Capital during the fifteen months ended
31 March 2016 was subject to significant uncertainty as at 31
March 2016. A provision was made accordingly.

In the current year, the related receivable for the investment
advisory and management services has been received in full. Based
on the IAM Agreement which also sets out the amount is net of
related taxes, management considers that it is appropriate to
release the value-added tax and surtax provisions amounted to
approximately HK$8,566,000.

*  For identification purpose only
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BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 7. EE=FEAIRER
Directors’ remuneration including consideration for directors’ TH BB ERESE S EFE622Z N
services disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)(a),(b),(c) and (f) TR ([ A FERF ) 55 383(1)@) - (b) ~ (O &
of the Companies Ordinance Cap. 622 (“CO") and Part 2 of Mg RRI(RBESFISER) B0(S
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of 622G ) E 2 BB AIEM LA EE s E
Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and GEM Listing Rules is i a
as follows: BRI
Group
rER
Fifteen months
Year ended ended
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
BZE2017% HZE20164F
3HA31H 3H31H
LLFE IE+REA
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Fees wE 4,393 818
Other emoluments: Hiti< :
Salaries, allowances, and bonuses e BB RIEA 27,788 7,548
Inducement fee EEE 1,000 -
Equity-settled share option expense IR 4E B MR IR L = 286
Pension scheme contributions RIS T B K 43 46
28,831 7,880
33,224 8,698

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016, certain
former directors were granted share options in respect of
their services to the Group under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme of the Company, details of which are set out in
note 24(a) to the consolidated financial statements. The fair
value of such options which has been recognised in
statement of comprehensive income over the vesting period
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount is
included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

During the reporting period, no share options have been
granted in respect of the directors’ services to the Group
under the Share Option Scheme (fifteen months ended 31
March 2016: Nil). Further details of the Share Option
Scheme are set out in note 24(b).

REZE2016F3A31HIE+HEAR  HF
AEERFESEHREENRBIREBEARRFH
BRARBEERRRETEIEERRE B
B BRI R A M IREMFE24() - ZFR
RiENATFEEREBHANZEKERA
R EDRELBHREE  meBEEHR
LA ESEHMHEENA -

RIEHA - WEREEHAEEHREGIE
R AR 81 H R (B = 20165F 3 A
31ALETRMEA - #) - REEEE—
B K 24(0) ©
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31 March 2017 201743 H31H

7. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 7. BEEFAR#EZ &)

(continued)

(@) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIFHITES

Other

emoluments

paid or

receivable in

respect of

director's

other services

in connection

Employer's  with the

contribution management

to pension of the affairs

scheme/ a of the

Equity-settled retirement  company or
For the year ended Discretionary share option benefit its subsidiary Total
31 March 2017 Fees  Salaries  bonuses Allowance  expense scheme  undertaking remuneration

RES

At

(HERANF

£fe AHNELE

/R SERAR)Z

RisgR REEEH BAHEZ HtEAd
HZ17E3A3NBLER e Fe WA Y AREMX  EIfR  ELME  HMER
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Tér  TErn TiEr FiEr FAr TiEr FEr TiEr

Mr. Stephen Markscheid Stephen Markscheid 72 &
(appointed on 18 June 2016) (R 201656 F 18 8

BE) 619 - - - - - 2
Mr. Edouard Merette Edouard Merette /£ &
(appointed on 18 June 2016) (142016565 18R
EZf) 698 - - - - - - 698
Mr. Zhang Weidong REREE(R2016F
(appointed on 5 July 2016) 7 A5 REZH) 583 - - - - 8 - 38
Mr. Chan Kai Nang BRERE A (R
(appointment lapsedon 17 201656 417 BER)
June 2016) 88 = = = = - - 88
Mr. Tsui Pui Yan fFRBLE (R 20165
(resigned on 18 June 2016) 6 A 18 EIE(E) 8 = - - - - - 8
Mr. Yi Xiqun R (R 2016F
(resigned on 6 April 2016) 4 6 REf) 2 = - - - - - 2
2,078 - - - - - - 2,078

110



7.

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 7.

(continued)
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31 March 2017 201743 A31H

ESENEER )

() BUFHTES(H)

For the fifteen months ended
31March 2016

HZ016435318
-t afER

Fees

HK$'000
TR

Discretionary

Salaries honuses

BiE%K

#e H7EA
HK$'000  HK$'000
T TET

Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable in
respect of
director's other
Services in
connection
with the
management
topension  of the affairs
scheme/ a of the
retirement company or its
benefit  subsidiary
scheme  undertaking
HEE

Hth s
(RERAAT

Rffe FENBAT
HE/BIR ZHIEE)Z
BElz  EtEAR
EER  EYEe
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FAT TA7 TAT AL

Employer's
contribution

Equity-settled
share option

Allowance expense

RE&ED
R RRERR

Total
remuneration

iaE
HK$'000
TET

REGER L
RBAE
KRR E

Mr. Chan Kai Nang
Mr. Tsui Pui Yan
Mr. Yi Xiqun

197
197
197

- 4 - -

4

238
197
238

591

673

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
ended 31 March 2017 (fifteen months ended 31

March 2016: Nil).

HZE2017F3831MBHILEFE  BHEENMNT
BYFEHTESHEMEES (B E201643

A31BIE+RMEA : &) -
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7. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 7. EE=TEIIRER »)
(continued)
(b) The chief executive, executive directors (b) EETHAE HITESRIEHIT
and a non-executive director !
Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable in
respect of
director's
other services
in connection
Employer's  with the
contribution management
Equity-  to pension of the affairs
settled  scheme/ a of the
share  retirement company or
For the year ended Discretionary option benefit its subsidiary Total
31 March 2017 Fees  Salaries  bonuses Allowance  expense scheme  undertaking remuneration
HES
Atk
(REBALNR
e FENELR
HH/RK SEAB)Z
MisgH REGEN BHHEz HpEHD
HEW17E3A310LEE ik i WA B OIRERT  EIfE EuWMe  HHEE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
fén  TEn Fén  FEn T TEr T TEr
Executive directors: 8%
Ms. Duan i Figt (R 2016E
(appointed on 12 May 2016) 5A12REZF) 1329 - - - - - - 1329
Mr. Cho Michael Min-kuk HEALE(R2016%
(appointedon 12May2016)  5A12BEEH) - 45 700 18% - 17 - 21386
Mr. Chen Jianfeng Peter AL (20165
(appointed on 17 June 2016) 6717 HEZ() - 5550 - - - 18 1,000 6,568
Ms. Zhang Yun FaLT(R016%
(appointed on 17 June 2016) 6717 BEZ{) 906 = = - - - - 906
Mr. Yeung Kai Cheung Patrick 15854
(appointment lapsed on 17 June  ({E4R 20165
2016) 6A178EH) 3 505 - - - 4 - 512
Mr. Chan Hok Leung RERLE
(appointment lapsec on 17 June (&R 20164
2016) 6A178EH) 3 364 - - - 4 - mn
201 18874 700 18% - B 1000 3102
Non-executive director: FanES:
Mr. Xin Luo Lin ERIEE
(appointment lapsecon 17June (R 2016 %
2016) 6A178E%) 7 - - - - - - 74
2315 18874 7,020 1,894 - 3 1,000 31,146
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BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 7. EEFERRER »)
(continued)
(b) The chief executive, executive directors (b) EETHAE #HITESRIEHIT
and a non-executive director (continued) E=AC-)
Other
emoluments
paid or
recelvable in
respect of
director's other
Services in
Employer's  connection
contribution with the
topension  management
scheme/a  of the affairs
Equity-settled  retirement of the company
For the fifteen months ended Discretionary share option benefit or ts subsidiary Total
31 March 2016 Fees  Salaries bonuses  Allowance  expense scheme  undertaking  remuneration
HES
H i
(REBALE
Rffe FENBAR
8z iE/RIR ZHIEE)C
2016£38318 BT REgst BAEe HEMR
[l iz g o BITEAT 2 ARERR  EXR EWEe  EHEE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
TEr  TEn AL TAr  TEn T T T
Executive directors: BEE:
Mr. Yeung Kai Cheung Patrick #8485 4 15 243 530 892 68 3 - 3963
Mr. Chan Hok Leung REREE 15 230 520 750 68 3 - 3677
30 4736 1,050 1,642 136 46 - 7,640
Non-executive director: JETES:
Mr. Xin Luo Lin ERIEE 197 - 106 - 68 - - 371
2] 4736 1,156 1,642 204 46 - 8,011

For the year ended 31 March 2017, there was no
arrangement under which any directors waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the period
(fiftteen months ended 31 March 2016: Nil).

For the year ended 31 March 2017, none of the
directors received or will receive loan or quasi-loan
arrangements or compensation for accepting or loss
of office as directors (fifteen months ended 31 March
2016: Nil).

HZE2017F383MBIEFE BBEEER
HAA R EE 5k R B I E T 5 B A Bt 2 Bk (B
Z2016F3A31HIE+AHEAR : £) -

HZE2017F383MBILFE  BESEE
SRR ERSTEER TS EE AR K
B (E (B =2016F3 A31BIE+RHEA -
/) o
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A e

7. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 7. BEEFAR#EZ &)

(continued)

(b) The chief executive, executive directors
and a non-executive director (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2017, except for Mr.
Chen Jianfeng Peter, none of the directors received or
will receive inducement fees for accepting or loss of
office as directors (fifteen months ended 31 March
2016: Nil).

(b) BETHRAR HTESEKEHT
BEx@)

HE2017F3A31HLEFE  BREREL
O BEEERRE N IS TE SR
U ER Sk i Y ER SR B & (B = 2016 3 A 31
HiE+R@EA : &) -

8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 8. hiuBSHMMES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
two (fifteen months ended 31 March 2016: two) directors,
details of whose remuneration are set out in note 7 above.
Details of the remuneration of the remaining three (fifteen
months ended 31 March 2016: three) highest paid
employees who were not directors for the year are as

FR ANGZaRTFMEIEEMML(EZ
20163 A3 ALETHRMEA : M) ES -
EHFMEFBESRR EXWE7 - FR - BT =
7 (HZE2016F3A31BIE+RHEA : =f1)
FESHSTMEENFTIFEBOT

follows:

Fifteen months
Year ended ended
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
BZE2017F HE20164F
3H31H 3H31H
IEEE IE+R@EA
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT

Salaries, allowances, bonuses and e RN A NREYHIZE
benefits in kind 18,920 3,700
Equity-settled share option expense Mg s B R IRAE R 2 = 78
Pension scheme contributions BRE T EIHR 30 68
18,950 3,846

The remunerations fell within the following bands are as

MRATHENZFMAOT

follows:
Number of employees
ESEE

Fifteen months
Year ended ended
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
HBZE2017F HE20164F
3A31H 3A31H
IEFEE -+HEA
Nil to HK$5,000,000 Z % 5,000,00078 70 0 3
HK$5,000,001 to HK$15,000,000 5,000,001 /& T £ 15,000,000 78T 3 -
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INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (fifteen months ended 31 March 2016: 16.5%) on
the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in
which the Group operates.

2016/17 Annual |

31 March 2017 201743 H31H

9. FifBBL(ER) BIX

EBFNEHERFNERBEENGFTER
i :m A 12 16.5% (B 220163 A31H 1
+HRMEA :16.5%) HF R (E L BEME - Hi
5 7 FESRBLA MR IBE R A S B & & FTE
R REE BRI ETH -

Fifteen months

Year ended ended
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
BZE2017% HZE 20164
3H31H 3H31H
LFE IE+FEM@EA
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FETL
Current tax — Hong Kong profits tax BIERF: 18 — BB RIS
Provision for the year/period F[EHRRE = 246
Adjustments in respect of prior years MBAFEELHFE 1,437 238
1,437 484
Current tax — Overseas BER®TE — /5N
Withholding tax provision for the year/ FEHARTE IR B & ()
period (note) - 12,747
Adjustments in respect of prior years MBEFEELHAR
(note) (F=E) (12,747) =
Total current tax BIVER7 I8 4 RE (11,310) 13,231
Deferred tax IRAERTIE
Origination and reversals of b By 22 RE A 2E A Ko B[Ol
temporary differences = 21)
Total deferred tax IRER A 4250 = (21)
Income tax (credit)/expense FTis®i (Ee), FxX (11,310) 13,210

Note:

Pursuant to the relevant tax rules and regulations in China, the tax payable on
income derived by non-resident enterprises (in this case ACCF) should be
withheld at source, with the payer (in this case Zhongzhi Capital) as the
withholding agent but the actual tax outcome might vary upon settlement.
Thus, management took the view that any corporate income tax amounting
to approximately HK$12,747,000 arising from fee receivable from Zhongzhi
Capital during the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 was subject to
significant uncertainty as at 31 March 2016. A provision was made
accordingly.

Mgt

REHEIEREHBHRAIRAETE  FFEREFE (HEEET
(BEBE))FTEEMAZ EAFHEAEITIRENS - X
ABA (HEIEPEER) BHAEBA - (BEEE B
B AERAIBEBFTTIE - Bt - EFXEERA B2 2016
FIA3NHIE+RBAELEPEERERERZFM
HE#12,747,0008 T2 R EFTEBIER 2016 F3 A 31 H
REATHYEEZZE - At - AEBE BIABHHE
TR -
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INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (continued)

Note: (continued)

In the current year, the related receivable for the investment advisory and
management services has been received in full. Based on the IAM Agreement
which also sets out the amount is net of related taxes, management considers
that it is appropriate to release the above tax provisions of income tax
amounted to approximately HK$12,747,000.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate in which the Group is
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as
follows:

9.

8% (ER) BX
HitE ()

RAFR » REFHAREEREZ R ERFRE T
YR o RIZIR A AR EIE 55 (5 P B A IR 16 R
B2 » EIEER AL LAL#) 12,747,000 8 T 717
W2 HRREETEEE

FERERARASERERRAEAENERE
H R Bt AT A B0 TR IR A S BRIR B IR AR R 5T E
MR S SRR T ¢

Fifteen months

Year ended ended
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
BZ2017%F HZE20164F
3A31H 3A31H
IHEE IHtt+AHEA
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Profit before tax R 250 A& A 67,872 125,883
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates LAEE AR A AT R = s A
applicable to profits in the respective BH S RAER
tax jurisdictions g 11,199 12,485
Adjustments in respect of prior years HBEFEELNFE (11,310) 238
Income not subject to tax HARBIUA (32,446) (216)
Expenses not deductible for tax TR 2 3,361 316
Utilisation of tax losses previously not FABTRERNTIAEE
recognised (248) (1
Unused tax losses not recognised RIERRAE) B IEEE 18,096 373
Others HAth 38 15
Tax charge at the Group's BASEBERTEGFER
effective rate MR (11,310) 13,210

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has tax losses of
approximately HK$109,674,000 incurred by the subsidiaries
which are subject to the approval by the relevant tax
authority. The Group has not recognised deferred income
tax assets of approximately HK$18,096,000 in respect of
these losses of approximately HK$109,674,000 that can be
carried forward against future taxable income. As at 31
March 2016, there was no significant unprovided deferred
income tax assets.
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NOTIéS TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. DIVIDENDS

11.

The Board does not recommend payment of a dividend for
the year (fifteen months ended 31 March 2016: Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2017, being
approximately HK$79,182,000 (fifteen months ended 31
March 2016: profit of HK$112,673,000) and the weighted
average number of 3,550,496,836 shares in issue for the
year ended 31 March 2017 (fifteen months ended 31 March
2016: 2,506,555,096 shares).

As disclosed in Notes 23(b) and 23(c) of these consolidated
financial statements, the Company issued 400,000,000
shares at HK$0.3876 per share and 1,630,756,836 shares at
approximately HK$0.298 per share on 24 February 2016
pursuant to the share subscription agreement dated 28
October 2015 and the placing agreement dated 5 January
2016 respectively. The aforementioned shares were
considered to be issued at a discount to the fair value of the
existing shares (being the market closing price of the shares
as at the date of the share issuance (i.e. 24 February 2016)).
Such discount represented a bonus element as determined
at the date of the share issuance, which was estimated as
884,323,642 shares for the purpose of adjusting the
weighted average number of shares in calculating the basic
earnings per share for the fifteen months ended 31 March
2016 as described in HKAS 33 “Earnings per Share”. No
adjustment has been made to the weighted average number
of shares adopt in the earnings per share calculations for the
year ended 31 March 2017 in respect of the aforementioned
share issuance as the changes to share capital arising from
such share issuance did not affect the capital used to
produce the profit in the year ended 31 March 2017.

e MR

31 March 2017 201743 H31H

10. B2

11.

BETEZEURAFEIRMNRE (HZE2016
FI3IANBIETRMBEA &) -

RAREERESFAARGS
IR 2 A

BRERNZFNEEEIIIEREZE 201743 A 31
HIEFEARRN R L @R ERTE ARG
4779,182,0008 T (B = 20163 A31 H1E
+HMEA - %5112,673,000587T) LA REE
20173 A31 B ILFEBE BTG T
¥ #3,550,496,836 % ( & = 20164 3 A 31
BIE+RMEA : 2,506,555,096 i) 55 -

FUNERE B SRR M 5E23(0) K2 23() BT #E 25
RARDBIRIEH A A20154 10 A28 HAY
It REH=& BHIA 2016 1 A5 H 2L
Sz 1R201642 A24H A= %0.3876
7870 E417 400,000,000 f% © N AR 470.298
75 703517 1,630,756,836 I AX D © L 3ft B 15
WR AT EIE AR M A FE (B K317 B
(BN2016F2 A248) W m{E) mEErT o
ZITERLAF - RIRODBITHEE © BFTE
BB GEREBRERAR] Frisg=
2016 F3 A3 AL TRHEARSRELREF
MBAERDNEFEHE ST Bt A
884,323,642 1% - AR EZ R MD BT AER
IRAE BN TR EEKB E2017F3 A 31
HIEFEBMTAEAR « a8 i
THZE2017F3 831 HILFEERAFE -
FIT A A% £ e ST 5 SR 0 48 5 -
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11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016, management
considered the share options issued under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme to be dilutive potential ordinary shares. For
the share options, the number of shares that would have
been issued assuming the exercise of the share options less
the number of shares that could have been issued at fair
value (determined as the average market price per share) for
the same total proceeds is the number of shares issued for
no consideration. The resulting number of shares issued
(including 29,206,343 dilutive potential ordinary shares) for
no consideration is included in the weighted average
number of 2,535,761,439 ordinary shares as the
denominator for calculating diluted earnings per share.

Diluted earnings per share amount was the same as basic
earnings per share amount as there were no potential
dilutive ordinary shares outstanding for the year ended 31
March 2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APAIEBEREREFEEAEMLS
BREF &)

HE2016F3A31HIETHEA EEE
RA - BB E R AFEE R RIER 83
THRREEBEELTRARAEEYE - iR
BRIEMS @ RERREEITEREEETZ
B0 8 B 0BR AT IR A FE (R B 2 FHm
F‘;ﬁm)%‘é& TZRMEE - FTEHEBENE
RERELSEERITHNRGOEE - AMES
ZHT X1TRR D BB (B4529,206,343 I A
?éﬁ é%&; VBT EA%) 5F A 2,535,761,439 I%

BRNEFEIBEADT  GTE SRS
SEREF o

HAREE2017FE3831A LEELEEE
BETEEL AR  WEREERF HETR
AEARZFFER o
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e MR
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12. EQUIPMENT 12. R1E
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
equipment vehicles Total
B RER
B RE #st
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FETT FET
31 March 2017 201753 H31H
At 31 March 2016 and R2016F3 A31HK
at 1 April 2016: 2016 F4 A1 8 :
Cost AR 3,074 2,377 5,451
Accumulated depreciation 2T E (2,153) (817) (2,970)
Net carrying amount REFE 921 1,560 2,481
At 1 April 2016, n2016E4 /818 -
net of accumulated R 25T E
depreciation 921 1,560 2,481
Additions INE 1,435 707 2,142
Disposal He = (1,124) (1,124)
Impairment VERIE] (319) - (319)
Depreciation during the year FRITE (740) (448) (1,188)
At 31 March 2017, M2017F3A318 -
net of accumulated kR BT E
depreciation 1,297 695 1,992
At 31 March 2017 MR2017%F3 A31H
Cost %N 4,509 707 5,216
Accumulated impairment ZHEE (319) = (319)
Accumulated depreciation 2t E (2,893) (12) (2,905)
Net carrying amount BREFE 1,297 695 1,992
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12. EQUIPMENT (continued) 12. &E#E)
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
equipment vehicles Total
B £EEBER
Bdi] RE #st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT FETT
31 March 2016 20163 A31H
At 31 December 2014 and MR2014F 12 A31B X
at 1 January 2015: 20151818 :
Cost (D% 2,607 3,057 5,664
Accumulated depreciation 2=t E (1,376) (903) (2,279)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,231 2,154 3,385
At 1 January 2015, 201561 A1 8 -
net of accumulated MR BT E
depreciation 1,231 2,154 3,385
Additions NE 467 - 467
Depreciation during the period ~ EiRITE (777) (594) (1,371)
At 31 March 2016, R2016F3 831H
net of accumulated R BT E
depreciation 921 1,560 2,481
At 31 March 2016 120163 A31H
Cost AR 3,074 2,377 5,451
Accumulated depreciation ZHinE (2,153) (817) (2,970)
Net carrying amount BREHE 921 1,560 2,481

120



13. INTANGIBLE ASSET

=
TATEMENTS
e MR R M T

31 March 2017 201743 A31H

13. B EE

At At

31 March 31 March

2017 2016

R2017 & #2016 F

3HA31H 3A31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Club membership i = 866

As at 31 March 2016, the intangible asset of the Group
represents the cost of a non-refundable club membership
held by a subsidiary.

The directors were of the opinion that the intangible asset
had an indefinite useful life. Accordingly, the intangible
asset was not amortised.

The club membership has been disposed of through a sale
of a subsidiary of the Company in the current year. For
details of the disposal, please refer to note 28(c).

MR2016F3A31H  AEBCEFREER
—MMB AR TS 2 N RIEGATZEERA o

EERREVEERE TREERFY -
it BEBEER S HEH o

EMERERNAFREBHEARRRKEL
AIHE - BRLEFE - F2HME28(0) °
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31 March 2017 201743 H31H

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14. ABRATINKRE

R2017F3A318H KRR THNEEH
BARHE#ER

As at 31 March 2017, the Company had interests in the
following principal subsidiaries:

Place of Nominal value of Percentage of
incorporation issued ordinary  equity attributable
Name and operations share capital to the Company Principal activities
MR ERTEBR KA e
=g EEM I BRAEE ERZAD TEXK
Direct  Indirect
HiZE B
Asian Capital (Corporate Hong Kong HK$10,141,140 = 100  Provision of
Finance) Limited corporate
advisory and
investment
advisory
services
S (hERE)FRAR i 10,141,140 87T - 100 RELEEMK
R E RS
Asian Capital (Resources) Hong Kong HK$10 - 100  Provision of
Limited ' corporate
advisory
services and
money lending
En(BR)ARATF! o 10767T - 100 Rt EERR
BREE
Asian Capital Holdings Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of
Limited 2 corporate
services
EDREARBFRAR? o 18T - 100 HREPERS
Best Remedy Investments The British Virgin US$20,000 100 —  Investment
Limited Islands (the “BVI")/ holding
Hong Kong
Best Remedy Investments HERZES ([H 20,000 37T 100 - KREERK
Limited BRELZEHE]),/
o
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14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

e VIR

31 March 2017 201743 A31H

14. RMBARMNKRE @)

Place of Nominal value of Percentage of
incorporation issued ordinary  equity attributable
Name and operations share capital to the Company Principal activities
AR AL K ERITEER AR
8 BEME RAmEE EZESL TEEH
Direct  Indirect
=% L3
Corporate Wise Limited The BVI/Hong Kong US$20,000 100 — Investment
holding
Corporate Wise Limited REBEARSS 20,000 37T 100 - FEERK
i
Dragon Legend Investments The BVI/Hong Kong US$1 100 — Investment
Limited holding
EEERERAF RERLRS, 1%L 100 - KREER
HE
Dragon Nest Investments The BVI US$1 100 — Investment
Limited holding
Dragon Nest Investments EERTHS 17T 100 - KRE#EN
Limited
Dragon Nest (HK) Investments ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment
Limited holding
Dragon Nest (HK) Investments &/ 1787 = 100 KEER
Limited
Dragon Valley Management The BVI US$1 - 100 Investment
Limited holding
Dragon Valley Management ~ HEBREZHS 13€7T - 100 REERK
Limited
Z7Cl Holdings (I) Limited The BVI US$1 100 — Investment
holding
ZZC| Holdings (1) Limited RBELHS 13E7T 100 - BEER
Z7 Cap International The BVI US$1 100 — Investment
Investments Limited holding
7Z Cap International EEBRIHS 127 100 - KREER

Investments Limited
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14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

14. RBRARMNKRE @)

Place of Nominal value of Percentage of
incorporation issued ordinary  equity attributable
Name and operations share capital to the Company Principal activities
AL R ERTEBER A PEL
218 EE R BRAEE EREDL TEEHK
Direct  Indirect
HiZ 3

77 Capital International (Israel) Israel NIS1 - 100  Provision of

Limited Ltd. investment
advisory
services

7Z Capital International (Israel) LA %l] 132 @ - 100 #R{IZERER
Limited Ltd. AR %5

ZZ Capital International (UK) United Kingdom GBP1 - 100  Provision of
Limited investment

advisory
services

7Z Capital International (UK) — Z5[E 1585 - 100 $REKZERERM
Limited PR

77 Capital International (US) us - - 100  Provision of
LLC investment

advisory
services

7Z Capital International (US) xH = = 100 RIS E R AR
LLC %

TR BRI EES%E  People’s Republic of US$400,000 - 100  Investment
HEHBR AR (Asian Capital China holding
(Qianhai) Investment
Management Limited*)

FYFTEEEREREESE PEARANE 400,000 % 7T - 100 HEER

EARAF

*  For identification purposes only
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15.

\, \\f =g

NOTE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

1. Asian Capital (Resources) Limited has changed its name to ZZCl Credit
Limited with effect from 11 April 2017.

2. Asian Capital Holdings Limited (formerly known as ZZ Capital
International Limited) has changed its name to ZZCl Corporate Services

//;/

=

S TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e VIR

31 March 2017 201743 A31H

14. RMBARMNKRE @)
Hfat -

1. 23 (ER)ERARIMEBEXRATHEELZE
BRAA - H2017F 4511 HELRK -

2. FEEXFRA A (FIEREELRBERGRAR)
HEBEXRRTEELRLERFERAA B

Limited with effect from 11 April 2017. 20174F 4711 HABERK -

DEPOSITS 15. &€

At At

31 March 31 March

2017 2016

R2017 & 2016 F

3A31H 3H31H

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FEIT

Rental and service charges deposit HERRBKEZS 35,983 -

Other deposit Efhits 100 100

Deposits B"E 36,083 100
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31 March 2017 201743 H31H

16.

126

TRADE RECEIVABLES 16. 5 BWFIA

At At

31 March 31 March

2017 2016

R2017 F 2016 4F

3A31H 3H31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FE&T

Trade receivables E%FEHSZ*” 8,806 131,069
Less: impairment loss on trade receivables & : Z 5 fE W ZIER EE 12 (540) (2,130)

Trade receivables — net B D EWFIE — 55 8,266 128,939
The Group’s normal trading term with its customers in REESEEPEERERSHET PR —BRE
relation to corporate advisory services is that payment is due PIEFT] ?*H:n'?’*mﬁfﬁ FE - MAKRER
upon the issuance of invoices, while the Group grants 90 MEREFAREERBETHERRLE 0

days credit period for invoices issued for its investment
advisory and management services. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management and executives responsible for the related
revenue.

Trade receivables arising from the provision of corporate
advisory, placing and underwriting services and investment
advisory and management service are non-interest-bearing.
The receivables from brokers arising from securities dealing
by the Group’s clients are interest-bearing at the prevailing
savings rate offered by banks in Hong Kong and are
repayable on demand. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances.

RiEEH - AEERRERFBREERER
M EIRIR - AU A R el B B ARRE R
MEREEAERNITABER®R -

RECERER  EENMBHRENAKRRER
@&%@%%%Eim L RKABERR

cAREEEFPETEFRRZELBELR
W$Wmﬁhﬁ TRBRITAIREERHR R
B WERBREEE - AEEWRAE
B 5 RN IR S A (R m R E 0
SBIE B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An analysis of the trade receivables which are past due but
not impaired as at the end of the reporting period, based on

e MR

31 March 2017 201743 A31H

16. EZEWRFIE (&)

RImERR - ERERAHARAREERN
B 5 RWE(BEAHHERRIE) W20

the invoice dates and net of provisions, is as follows: T

At At
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
H2017 F R2016 4
3H31H 3A31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current to 30 days BNEAZE 30 H 1,729 620
31 to 60 days 31%60H 350 100
61 to 90 days 61£290H 250 200
Over 90 days #3890 H 3,165 545
5,494 1,465

The above analysis has not included investment advisory and Eai AT EA AR2017F3 31 BEKE

management fee receivables as at 31 March 2017 of
approximately HK$2,772,000 (31 March 2016:
HK$127,474,000) which were current (see Note (a)).

Notes:

(@)

(b)

All of the above receivables (except for the receivables in relation to
the investment advisory service) that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that have good track
records with the Group, or have subsequently settled the amounts
due to the Group. The invoice dates of the above trade receivables are
generally the same as the corresponding due dates apart from the
investment advisory and management fee, where management fee is
due within 90 days after the end of each calendar year for managing
the investment portfolio and performance fee is due within 90 days
after the receipt of the amount realised from the disposal of certain
assets in the investment portfolio under the Group’s advice by
Zhongzhi Capital in accordance with the IAM Agreement. The
Directors are of the opinion that, other than the impairments that
have already been made, no provision for impairment is necessary in
respect of these receivables as the balances have either been
recovered or are still considered fully recoverable.

Up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements,
subsequent settlement of trade receivables as at 31 March 2017
amounted to approximately HK$1,658,000.

AN EIEE B EWGIEA2,772,0007%8 7T
(201643 A31H : 127,474,000 7T) * B
RAZIAE R (AT (@) »

Kt

(a)

(b)

LA _E Atk B 8 BB K R (B B9 R (B B R &
A7 7 AR T Y E KSR B 1) 2 B B A T B AR 4R [E]
BB RFERDFAREE BN T A KB
FHHBUEFER - BREZAREEEHIRE
REFAREE AR EERBEMETELNE
12 B B FFE 90 H AN EI B RAE P IEE AW E]
HEAREEZZZ REME N E TEERESE
By KR B2 FE1E 90 HNEIHISN - LA _EE S WA
TRy %52 AR —AR BAEE A FIR A FE IR - EFE
7 BREELABIES) - BFESE S ERSRIE
MR ER S - RERF AR RBEREIHBEE R
GIES ¢/ qE

BN FHE BRI ERE - R2017F3 A
31 HAEEZEZ B 5 ENRNEL A 1,658000%
i o
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16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 16. B 5 BUWRKIE (&)

As at 31 March 2017, trade receivables of approximately A 2201793 A31 8 * £540,0007% T &9
HK$540,000 (31 March 2016: HK$2,423,000) were B S REWRIE(20164E3 A31 R 2,423,000
impaired. The amount of the provision was approximately BIT) BERE - 8220173 A 31 HAY#
HK$540,000 as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: e EEAI 43 540,000857T(2016F3 A31H -
HK$2,130,000). The individually impaired receivables mainly 2,130,000 7T) » {ERIE RERWFKIBEE
relate to the customers, which, based on the management’s HEIRE TR BT E X 2R E R
assessment, may not settle the impaired receivables in ENEFEER -

immediate future.

Movements on the Group’s allowance for impairment of INEE G E B E WG TB R E FTE R B e
trade receivables are as follows: m
At At
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
R2017 & 2016 F
3H31H 3A31H
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Opening balance CERIEES 2,130 2,380
Provision for receivables impairment FEWF R R B 50 750
Reversal of allowance for impairment W [1 1% 55 R (B 1 2]
upon recovery (841) (1,000)
Receivables written off during the year/ A,/ HA A fiE U 2% 18 R 1~ AT Y []
period as uncollectible il $5 (799) -
Closing balance iR A5 EA 540 2,130
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17. OTHER ASSETS AND RECEIVABLES

18.

e MR

31 March 2017 201743 A31H

17. Hib EEREWRIEA

At At

31 March 31 March

2017 2016

2017 F #2016 4

3A31H 3H31H

HK$000 HK$°000

FET T

Prepayments TEfIFRIE 3,125 664
Deposits and other receivables 24 N E b e I8 4,821 1,355
7,946 2,019

None of the above assets is past due or impaired. The
financial assets included in the above balances relate to cash
held with brokers as well as receivables for which there was

no recent history of default.

INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

it EES RN HIRRE o LR
BRENEREEARLHAZRE IR
HEHE R AC B FE YRR

18. RAFERBERRIIRNIKRE

At At
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
R2017 & 2016 6
3A31H 3H31H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Hong Kong listed equity investments, BB LETRERE
at market value BRHE 115 140
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B BmRME

31 March 2017 201743 H31H

19. CASH HELD ON BEHALF OF CLIENTS 19. REFRKEZEE
The Group's licensed subsidiary maintains segregated trust AREBRFENEB R A RFRITHRRIB L
accounts with a licensed bank to hold clients’ monies arising FEHEP  UERHEBEBEBBRETELAN
from its normal course of business. The Group has classified BEDHIE o NEFDLEZPRIBLEALES
the clients’ monies as cash held on behalf of the subsidiary’s BB RRRBEEBR M ZHBATR
clients under the current assets section of the consolidated FiHEzHe BN EHRPHIAERE
statement of financial position, and recognised the S A MAES T AL EeRSEEE
corresponding payables to the respective clients as trade FIERHENENERBIEAE SHIENTIE -
payables on the grounds that it is liable for any loss or RNEBTNESETRARTERIBSEER FET -
misappropriation of clients’ monies. The Group is not
allowed to use clients’ monies to settle its own obligations.
20. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 20. RERIBITHEER
At At
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
R2017 & 2016 &
3A31H 3H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FEIT
Cash and bank balances e RIRITE 545,007 21,747
Time deposits TE BRfE K 419,274 766,109
Cash and bank balances as stated in the AR KP TR &
consolidated statement of financial RITHEER
position 964,281 787,856
Less: Time deposits with original maturity & : REIHIBB:E =188 EH
of more than three months TR (74,339) (118,068)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the #FARERERTHAHNE L KL
consolidated statement of cash flows BEEEY 889,942 669,788
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22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE PAYABLES 21.

Included in trade payables are clients monies of HK$216,542
(31 March 2016: HK$215,000) which are segregated in the
trust accounts as described in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Trade payables excluding clients monies, based on the
settlement due dates, are all due within 30 days (31 March
2016: due within 30 days) as at the end of the reporting
period.

e VIR

31 March 2017 201743 A31H

BZENRRE

TIANE S ENFIBE AR P RIE216,542 78T
(201653 A31H : 215,000/87T) * BRE &
THINER A M REM 19 Tt BB A
FERRF o

RERE IR - BB B - EHEMARK
E(BEFZEBERKINHHR30B8 AR H(2016
F3A31H : N30EAFHE) -

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 22. HibENFIERESER
At At
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
HN2017 F R 20164
3H31H 3A31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Accruals and other payables et B A N A fth FE A R I8 13,727 13,122
Provision for Bonus P AR 33,467 2.760
47,194 15,882

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an
average term of one month to three months (31 March
2016: one month to three months).

HEthESRIEAR B R FHEERR A —E
AZ=MA (20163 A31H: —@AZE=
@A) -
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31 March 2017 201743 H31H

23. SHARE CAPITAL

132

23. B

Number of Nominal

shares value

43 2 B HE

Note HK$
iz BT

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 per share FREE0.01 LA

&AL

Authorised: ETE
As at 31 March 2016, 7201653 A31H

1 April 2016 and 20165F4 1B R

31 March 2017 201793 A31H 10,000,000,000 100,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETLERE
As at 31 December 2014 and 201412 A31H

1 January 2015 N&2015%F1A1H 1,451,540,000 14,515,400

Allotment of new shares pursuant to: REAT BB -

Pre-IPO share option scheme BRAREEARRETE a 68,200,000 682,000

New Shares Placing Agreement HREL &2 b 400,000,000 4,000,000

Subscription Agreement REW= 1,630,756,836 16,307,568
As at 31 March 2016, R2016F3 A31H

1 April 2016 and 2016F4 1B K

31 March 2017 201793 A31H 3,550,496,836 35,504,968

Notes: izt -

(@) Details of the Company’s Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the share (a) ¥ NI =W N k=T L s A=
options issued under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are included in I E R RIS BB TR R FIEEHA
note 24(a) to the consolidated financial statements. b A BT IRA N AL 24(a)

) On 5 January 2016, the Company entered into a placing agreement (b) R20164F 1 A5H » KA F]H—Z %% Tl ERHE
(the “New Shares Placing Agreement”) with an independent placing ([#TRECERIE]) TV E 1% ([ IRICE 17
agent (the “New Shares Placing Agent”) pursuant to which the New ) B IR EREIEE AN
Shares Placing Agent procured placees to subscribe for 400,000,000 400,000,000 i8¢ 7K 1 a] FT AR 17 ([#T EC E A% 17 ]) »
new shares of the Company (the “New Placing Shares”) at the placing ME B AFRITATER0.3876 5T + B12A712
price of HK$0.3876 per New Placing Share, raising a gross proceed of SNAEFE A 155,040,000 5T °
HK$155,040,000.

© On 28 October 2015, Jinhui and Kang Bang Qi Hui (HK) Company (© 201510 A28 A - Jinhui % B 7 2 ¥ ( & %)

Limited (“Kang Bang”) entered into a subscription agreement (as
amended and supplemented by the supplemental subscription
agreement dated 5 January 2016) (the “Subscription Agreement”)
with the Company. Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, Jinhui
and Kang Bang subscribed a total of 1,630,756,836 new shares of
the Company (the “Subscription Shares”) for an aggregate
consideration of HK$485,965,537 in cash at the subscription price of
approximately HK$0.298 per Subscription Share.

BRA A ([FEH]) BA R AT 3308 % ([ 30
ek ]) (A A B A 2016 9F 1 A 5 AR 7008
EET R TE) » IRIRRFE a5 » Jinhui K FEH 208
u/\7630756836ﬂlz7-ﬁ ] # B 17 ([ 33 FE R
7)) - #83E 2 H(B /485,965,537 T * MR
BRI 3 AR 5RIB AR 17 #90.298 7T ©
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company operated a Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) adopted
on 7 June 2010 for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contributed
to the success of the Group's operations. Eligible
participants of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
included directors, senior management, certain
employees and officers, and consultants of the Group.

The number of share options upon their exercise was
equal to 120,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
(the “Shares”), being 10% of the Company’s issued
ordinary shares at the date of Listing. The options
must be exercised on or after the second anniversary
and until the tenth anniversary of the grant date, and
the exercise price had been fixed at HK$0.20, being
the placing price per Share at the time of Listing.

All the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme were granted on 10 June 2010 and no
further share options can be granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme thereafter.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

31 March 2017 201743 A31H
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 24. AREE @)

(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) BARABHBEINRRESTE(E)
The following share options were outstanding under ER/HABBEERARBER AR
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during the year/ B2 AT ERIRERT :
period:

Fifteen months ended
Year ended 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
BE201753A31ALFEE  HE2016F3A31BLTHEA
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options  exercise price options
METHTEE RREHE METHATRE RIREHE
HKS$ per share ‘000  HKS per share ‘000
BRET F GRET 5
At the beginning of the year/period A4 /8% - - 0.2 68,200
Forfeited during the year/period FR,/HRE R - - 02 =
Exercised during the year/period ERX/BMRNEITE - - 0.2 (68,200)
At the end of the year/period RE/HR - - - -
Options exercised during the fifteen months ended 31 REZE2016F3A31BIETRABATT
March 2016 resulted in 68,200,000 shares being {2 8 I% #E B 568,200,000 f% f% 17 1%
issued at a weighted average price of HK$0.2 each. IETFHEFR0.2BTEST - BT
The related weighted average closing price of the FER AR E B AT AR R AR (7 B9 48 B8 A0
shares of the Company immediately before the date TR HEN FEAR0.30BTE0.41
on which the options were exercised ranged between BIT ©

HK$0.30 and HK$0.41 per share.

As at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016, there was 7R2017F3H31H X2016F3A31H -
no outstanding share options. BT AT i R AT (50 2 SRARHE o
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The fair value of the share options granted during the
year ended 31 December 2010 was approximately
HK$15,000,000 as at 31 December 2010
(approximately HK$0.125 each) of which no share
option expense was recognised by the Group during
the year ended 31 March 2017 (fifteen months ended
31 March 2016: HK$465,000).

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during the year ended 31 December 2010 was
estimated as at the date of grant, using a binomial
model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. The following
table lists the inputs to the model used:

e MR
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24. BRETTE(#)

(a) BERDMABEARRETE (&)

HZE20108 12 A31BLEEEE T
KR ER2010F 12 A31 AWM AFE
{E#715,000,00078 7T (10 490.125 7%
L) HRASBEREE2017F3 A4
BRI FENERERARRERI (B
Z£2016%43H318 It + & @ A:
465,000/ 7C) °

HZE2010F12 A31 B It FEREH
RAELEERBREATFEINEL B
FEA-TEA  EEERIZERR
PRV R AR T dET © TRIIRET
FREA R 2%

2010

20104

Dividend yield (%) f&% B K (%) 3.60
Expected volatility (%) T8 H R 18 (%) 87.47
Exercise multiple ITIEREE 3.00
Exit rate (%) IR R (%) 20.00
Risk-free interest rate (%) f2 [ B 1 2K (%) 2.75

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
volatility with reference to other similar companies is
indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
no share options outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme (fifteen months ended 31 March
2016: Nil). At the date of approval of these financial
statements, the Company had no share options
outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(fiftteen months ended 31 March 2016: Nil).

FBHRERRE2EZEMBELRE MR
B2RE  HRKBLAETEZMR
R MEMBERZIRRBE IR —E

GELELS TR 2T PN
FEME -

RIMEIR - AR R EE AR
E AR IRFERT I E T W AR TTE R
(B =2016F3A31HIE+HMEA :
/) c RIS ISmERIERR - AR
AMEE X ARAEESNRIRESE
T ARITHERRE(HZ=2016F3 A
31THIETREA : &) -
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme

136

On 7 June 2010, the Company adopted a share option
scheme which became effective on 18 June 2010 (the
“Share Option Scheme”) and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from the date of Listing. The Company operates
the Share Option Scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants for their
contributions to the Group. Eligible participants of the
Share Option Scheme include the directors and
employees of the Group and other individuals as
determined by the directors on the basis of their
contribution to the development and growth of the
Group.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Company is an amount equivalent, upon their
exercise, to 120,000,000 Shares, being 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of
approval of the Share Option Scheme. As at the date
of this annual report, the total number of shares
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
120,000,000 Shares, representing 3.38% of the
existing issued share capital of the Company. The
maximum number of Shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Company within any 12-month period, is limited to
1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of these
limits are subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting with such participant and his/her associates
abstaining from voting.

24. BREFTE (2

(b)

AR E
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] E Ath SR AR AE FT &I A 18 R 1T E
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors of the
Company (excluding any independent non-executive
director who is a prospective grantee). In addition, any
share options granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Company
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue or with an aggregate value (based
on the closing price of the Shares at the date of grant)
in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month
period, are subject to independent shareholders’
approval in advance a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and ends on
a date which is not later than 10 years from the date
upon which the share options is granted or the lapse
of the Share Option Scheme, whichever is earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors, but may not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the Shares quoted on the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a
business day, (ii) the average closing price of the
Shares quoted on the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of
grant, and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No share option has been granted since the adoption
of the Share Option Scheme.

e MR
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25.

26.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The Group’s share premium represents the proceeds
received from share issuance net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital and/or share
premium.

The Group's contributed surplus represents the excess of the
nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the reorganisation prior to the Listing, over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
thereafter.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
As lessee

The Group leases its office premises under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms
of two to seven years (2016: two to three years). The leasing
arrangements do not have any contingent rent and
extension option.

At 31 March 2017, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

25.

26.

fE e

REMBEFENASERESBARER
HE2IINGFARAZB KT -

RER BB 10 (B 1 A (D B 1T 2 FTS 5) IR (H
BREMERBEISRA)  HIARK
&/ RET o

AEERMABBRIER EHATRIREAWE
R R R EE R B UL RETT R B M
BITOAR BRI EER AR

REMEYRH
EREBA

AEERBELENLHEEERAE
X -ZETWEBRONZEEYAMELSF
(2016%F : ME=F) - ZFHOLHREL
IS A K AR -

MR20179F3 A31H » KEBHARERIA
THPR EI BBV AT BSH A AR A RS 2 R 2R
=IERAL

At At

31 March 31 March

2017 2016

#2017 F 72016 F

3A31H 3A31H

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within one year —F R 37,486 3,023
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEERF(BREREME) 43,195 340
Over five years HBEAF 6,382 -
87,063 3,363
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27.

28.

COMMITMENTS

Except for the operating lease commitments detailed in note
26 above, the Group had a gross underwriting commitment
to take up certain Hong Kong listed equity investments of
HK$50,600,000 as at 31 March 2016 (which has been fully
sub-underwritten) and a future capital contribution of
US$1,599,905 as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016:
US$2,000,000) that arose from its application for
establishing a wholly-owned foreign funded equity
investment management enterprise in Qianhai, Shenzhen.
Saved for the above, the Group and the Company did not
have any significant commitment as at 31 March 2017 and
2016.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions detailed in Notes 7, 16 and
23 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group had
the following transactions and balances with related parties
during the year ended 31 March 2017 and the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2016.

(@  During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016,
Phillip Capital (HK) Limited (“Phillip Capital”), a former
shareholder of the Company, paid ACCF, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, a fee in the
amount of HK$1 million (the “Arrangement Fee”)
upon completion of the share purchase in
consideration of ACCF arranging Phillip Capital to
dispose of its entire interest in the Company under the
share purchase agreements. Phillip Capital was a
substantial shareholder of the Company immediately
before the completion of the share purchase on 24
February 2016 and was a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

27.

28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

31 March 2017 201743 H31H

iR

Br b SCHT RE 26 BT 5 it ) 45 2 AR 49 A A1
R2016F3A31H AEBEREETH
B _ET IR AL E 2 42 B $5 74 50,600,000 75
TL(EERE D BHE) MALEBER2017F3
B31BHREBREIIAIEERY —ME2EINE
WEREREERDE  EERRELREA
1,599,9053<7T(20164F3 A31H : 2,000,000
En)e BEuliEFIN AEBERADRR
2017 %2016 %63 A 31 B I & {F {a] & K&

= o

=

RELFRS

BRAFA MBS MERMTET - 16 R 23FsH AN
S8 REBREZE2017F3 A31HIESF
EREHZE201663A31H1E+ R A A LEE
ETET IR B MR o

(@ MNEZE2016F3A31BIE+RHMAA -
RNAFRIREIBLEAR (BB GRA
A(BLEXR]) AERARRZEN
BAra S (hERE) LB ER
BRERMBEH RELEERARTHN
2EER  REBROHEER  mE
G(hEME)BRAAIN—%25
/1,000,000 7T 0 & A([ Z 5 &
Al - B EREER 201692 A 24
HERBROBEAMALAARZEZR
B WIREAI R ETRAE20EA
RARZEAEAL -

139




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BRRME

31 March 2017 201743 H31H

28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

140

(b)

On 2 February 2016, Zhongzhi Capital and ACCF, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the IAM Agreement, which was subsequently
approved by independent shareholders of the
Company on 21 March 2016. Zhongzhi Capital is a
controlling shareholder of the Company interested in
approximately 73.66% (31 March 2016: 64.19%) of
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31
March 2017.

Pursuant to the IAM Agreement, ACCF was appointed
as an investment manager to Zhongzhi Capital to
provide investment advice and investment
management services in managing a portfolio of listed
securities under the IAM Agreement to Zhongzhi
Capital commencing from 21 March 2016 to 31
March 2018. Further details of the IAM Agreement in
relation to the remuneration payable to ACCF by
Zhongzhi Capital in terms of management fee and
performance fee under the IAM Agreement are set
out on page 141 to 143 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Certain disposal of an investment included in the
investment portfolio being managed by ACCF under
the IAM Agreement (the “Disposal”) took place in
March 2016. A side letter was signed subsequently by
Zhongzhi Capital and ACCF (the “Side Letter”).
Further details and principal terms of the Side Letter
are set out on page 142 to 143 to the consolidated
financial statements. During the year ended 31 March
2017, ACCF was entitled to a total remuneration of
approximately HK$191,211,000 (fifteen months
ended 31 March 2016: HK$127,474,000) in relation
to Zhongzhi Capital’s disposal of an investment
included in the investment portfolio being managed
by ACCF in accordance with the IAM Agreement and
the Side Letter. All of the amount was settled as at 31
March 2017.
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28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(continued)

A management fee of approximately HK$2,772,000
was also recognised by ACCF during the year ended
31 March 2017 based on the IAM Agreement for
management services on remaining portfolio after the
Disposal.

Principal terms of the IAM Agreement (as extracted
from the circular issued by ZZ Capital International
Limited, formerly known as Asian Capital Holdings
Limited, dated 4 March 2016 with the definitions
being the same meaning used in the same circular)

ACCF will be entitled to either (a) management fee; or
(b) performance fee, but not both, according to the
following:

(a) Management fee

A quarterly management fee, which is payable
in arrears within 90 days after the end of each
calendar year shall be calculated in accordance
with the formula below:

Management fee =V x R x 3/12
V: Total Asset Value (as at each Valuation Date)

R: Rate of the management fee, which is
equivalent to (i) 0.5% per annum if the Licensing
Conditions have not been withdrawn by the SFC
during the term of the IAM Agreement; or (ii)
1.0% per annum if the Licensing Conditions
have been withdrawn by the SFC during the
term of the IAM Agreement and commencing
from the date thereof

31 March 2017 201743 A31H
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28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

142

(continued)

(b) Performance fee

In the event of any disposal of an Asset by
Zhongzhi Capital during the term of the IAM
Agreement, a performance fee, which shall be
payable within 90 days after the receipt of the
amount realised from such disposal by Zhongzhi
Capital, calculated in accordance with the
formula below:

Performance fee = (P2 — P1 — C) x F

P1: Adjusted Asset Value in respect of the Asset
P2: Gross amount realised from the disposal of
the Asset

C: Relevant tax liability arising therefrom

F: Rate of the performance fee, which is
equivalent to 30%

If the calculation for the performance fee
produces a negative figure, no performance fee
shall be payable by Zhongzhi Capital.

Principal terms of the side letter (as extracted
from the Side Letter in relation to the IAM
Agreement)

Zhongzhi Capital shall:

(@) recognise 40% of the performance fee
upon Zhongzhi Capital entering into a
legally binding agreement with the
counterparty for the disposal of the Shares
(irrespective whether or not such disposal
will be completed and/or Zhongzhi Capital
will receive any amount from such
disposal); and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(continued)

(b) Performance fee (continued)

Zhongzhi Capital shall: (continued)

(b)

recognise the remaining 60% of the
performance fee as the services performed
by the Manager ACCF upon the
occurrence of the second milestone of the
receipt of more than half of the total
proceeds from the disposal of the Shares.
In the event the disposal does not proceed
to completion or the company does not
receive any amount from such disposal for
whatever reason, the Manager ACCF will
not be entitled to the second tranche of
the relevant performance fee.

On 9 December 2016, ACCF, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Master Link Assets
Limited (“Master Link”), which is wholly owned by a
former Director, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement of which ACCF disposed of its 100% held
non-core subsidiary without business activities, known
as Well Baly Limited, to Master Link at a total
consideration of HK$520,000. Such disposal resulted
in a loss of approximately HK$341,000 on the Group'’s
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for

the year.
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28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

144

(0

28. BEARF (&)

(continued) (o (#&)
Year ended
31 March 2017
BZE2017F3H31H
LHFEE
HK$'000
FET
Consideration received B E 520
Add: i
Net liabilities of the subsidiary as at Oy EENGIhAsek-a= Rl
disposal date: BfEFE -
Intangible assets mAE (866)
Amounts due to the immediate B EBIER AT
holding company k] 1,270
Other payables H A fETFIE 5 409
Less: B
Waiver of amounts due from the subsidiary %A & B B A 75118 (1,270)
Loss on disposal HERsE (341)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEELNEIRFE 520
During the year, two non-current assets were disposed (d) RAFE MEFADEAEEARR

of by ACCF, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. On 13 March 2017, ACCF and Allied Target
Holdings Limited (“Allied Target”), which is majority
owned by a former director, entered into an
agreement of which ACCF sold one of its motor
vehicles to Allied Target at a total consideration of
HK$720,000. Such disposal resulted in a loss of
approximately HK$105,000 on the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year. On
15 March 2017, ACCF disposed another motor vehicle
to Cypress House Capital Limited, for a total
consideration of HK$280,000 and resulted in a loss of
approximately HK$19,000 on the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year.

2%%%%9}51?%&%@%3)&%
M2017F3 8138 S (L¥EmE)
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AESHAEAZE) L — Bz &
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— )R E - BB A 720,00087T ° &
/Aﬁ%%ﬁ$¢f£wé\i\ﬁﬂﬂlﬁn%zﬁq
$% 15 E718 47 105,000 7T M 2017
3A15H ER(hXERE)AEE
AERAREE S —8WTHE  ARE
#280,0008 T N BB AFERE R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(e)

During the year, Zhongzhi Capital (HK) Company
Limited (“Zhongzhi Capital (HK)"), the intermediate
holding company of the Group, recharged an amount
of approximately HK$2,636,000 to the Group for the
occupancy of its Cheung Kong Center office and sold
its fixture and furniture in the office to the Group for
an amount of approximately HK$272,000 on 1 March
2017.

As at 31 March 2017, the outstanding amount due to
intermediate holding company of approximately
HK$272,000 represented the aforesaid purchase of
such fixture and furniture made on 1 March 2017
between the Group and Zhongzhi Capital (HK). The
amount is interest-free and repayable on demand.

On 13 March 2017, the subsidiary of the Company,
ACCF entered into a supplemental appointment letter
with a director of the subsidiary, Mr. Patrick Yeung.
Pursuant to the supplemental appointment letter, the
following services and obligations will be transferred:

i. Mr. Patrick Yeung shall reimburse ACCF an
amount equivalent to any loss recorded by ACCF
during the period from 1 January 2016 to 30
June 2017 based on the management accounts
as at 30 June 2017 .

ii.  After 1 July 2017, ACCF shall have the right to
require Mr. Patrick Yeung to acquire from ACCF
any receivables of ACCF which remains
outstanding as at 30 June 2017 and which has
not been recovered in full by ACCF at net book
value.

ii.  Mr. Patrick Yeung is authorized to determine
and allocate bonuses to be paid to the staff of
ACCF in respect of the period from 1 January
2016 to 30 June 2017.
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28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

28. BEARF (&)

(9 Compensation of key management personnel, (90 AEEXZEBEAB (BEAEEHIT
including executive directors and key management of EERFEEERE)NHM
the Group:
Fifteen
Year ended  months ended
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
BZE2017%F BZE 20164
3A31H 3H31H
LEFE LETRMEA
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FET
Short term employee benefits EHES R 42,189 7,911
Pension scheme contributions RIS T 43 46
Equity-settled share option expense e E R R AER = 332
Total compensation paid to key B FEEETE A 8 F B
management personnel 42,232 8,289
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included EHAEEMEHE —FSHEBEHRES
in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements. BTSRRI EET o

29. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 23 May 2017, ZZCl Holdings (I) Limited, being a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
agreement as the buyer with ZZ Capital Holdings No.1
Company Limited as the seller, being a connected person of
the Company, pursuant to which the buyer agreed to
purchase and the seller agreed to sell 0.673% equity interest
in SSC Holdco Limited at a consideration of US$1,880,000
subject to and upon the terms of the agreement. Details of
the above transaction was disclosed in the announcement

of the Company dated 23 May 2017.
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMiENTS

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:
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30. €t T HER

RBEHRR  SESHTAREEAT

At At
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
H2017 F R2016 4
3H31H 3H31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Financial assets SREE
Deposits e 36,083 100
Trade receivables B 5 EWGIR 8,266 128,939
Financial assets included in other sSTAEME E R EWRFIER
assets and receivables SREE 4,821 1,355
Cash held on behalf of clients REFEEZES 217 215
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTES 964,281 787,856
Loan and receivables B GR 1,013,668 918,465
Investments at fair value through BAFEREBRRYIENRE
profit or loss 115 140
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEREBERKIIEN
profit or loss — held for trading TRIEE —HEEE 115 140
Total sa=t 1,013,783 918,605
Financial liabilities SHEE
Trade payables B SN HRIA 403 645
Other financial liabilities EmomaE 47,194 7,316
Amount due to an intermediate AR E 2 NCIE ]
holding company 272 -
Financial liabilities at amortised cost RE R ASEENSRARE 47,869 7,961
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31. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 31.

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments are as follows:

TS

DFERDIFESR

AEENSRTANEEERAFERT

Carrying amounts Fair values
BEE AYE
As at As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2017 2016 2017 2016
R2017F 20165 R2017 720166
3A31H 3A31H 3A31H 3A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FHET FET FET
Financial assets SREE
Investments at fair value through BATERERRTIERN
profit or loss RE 115 140 115 140

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of deposits, trade receivables, financial assets
included in other assets and receivables, cash held on behalf
of clients, cash and bank balances, trade payables, other
financial liabilities and amount due to an intermediate
holding company approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on
quoted market prices. The fair values of the unlisted
investment are estimated using a valuation technique based
upon the recent market transactions and updated for post-
transaction events.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

(continued)
Fair value hierarchy

The fair value hierarchy of the Group has the following
levels:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation techniques
for which all inputs which have a significant effect
on the recorded fair value are observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques
for which any inputs which have a significant
effect on the recorded fair value are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs)

The assets and liabilities included in the consolidated
statement of financial position, except for investments at fair
value through profit or loss, are carried at amortized costs.
Their carrying values are an appropriate approximation of
fair value.
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31. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 31. A ERAFEZEH &)

(continued)

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 March 2017

BAVEENEE

M2017%3A31H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& ER F=R #ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Investments at fair value RAFERBERRY
through profit or loss RAIRE 115 - - 115
As at 31 March 2016 201643 A31H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—1 FE_R E=M FEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Investments at fair value BRAFERERKY
through profit or loss ARHYIRE 140 _ _ 140

The Company did not hav
measured at fair value as at 3

During the year ended 31 M

ended 31 March 2016, there
measurements between Level

150

e any other financial assets
1 March 2017 and 2016.

arch 2017 and fifteen months
were no transfers of fair value
1, Level 2 and Level 3.
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, comprise of
cash and short term deposits. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables, other
assets and receivables, investments at fair value through
profit or loss, trade payables, and other payables and
accruals, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group'’s financial instruments
are credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and price risk.
The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Credit risk

The Group primarily provides services to recognised and
creditworthy third parties. Except for providing services to
insolvent companies, it is the Group’s policy that advanced
and progress payments are generally required for new
customers. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts
is at acceptable level. It is not market practice to obtain
collateral.

In addition to the Group’s significance exposure to the
financial institution in relation to the bank balances and time
deposits totalling approximately HK$499,905,000 (31 March
2016: HK$657,373,000), the credit risk of the Group's
financial assets, which comprise trade receivable, other
assets and receivables, arises from default of the
counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments. Collateral is generally
not sought on these assets.

As at 31 March 2017, the directors considered there is no
material trade receivables balances of the Group subject to
significant credit risk. The management monitors the
receivables in accordance with the credit policy as described
above.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Apart from the above, the Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to other assets and receivables and bank
balances. As the other receivables and bank balances are
largely due from authorised institutions, the exposure to
credit risk is considered acceptable.

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest-bearing financial assets are balances
with banks which bear interest at market rates. The interest
rate charged on the interest-bearing assets is determined by
reference to the Hong Kong Dollar prime rate of an
authorised institution in Hong Kong. Depending on the then
perceived cash flow requirements, the Group’s policy is to
maintain the majority of its funds in demand or short-term
bank deposits that are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in interest rate. Of the bank balances,
approximately HK$545,007,000 (2016: HK$21,747,000) is
on demand as at 31 March 2017.

At 31 March 2017, it is estimated that a general increase of
100 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would increase the Group’s profit after tax
and increase retained profits by approximately
HK$5,450,000 (2016: HK$217,000). Other components of
equity would not be affected by the changes in interest
rates. A material decrease in interest rates is not considered
reasonably possible because of the low interest rate
environment.
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. KEREEEERBE®
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk RENE € Bk
The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between AEEMBEEZAFRERANILESEMTE
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of LEESHER  FESEREHATEEZ
internal funding to meet its working capital requirements. FEGEEE AEEEERERBERSH
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds by BEE (HlanE 5 E W EIE) B2 H E A R T8 =t
considering the maturity of both its financial liabilities and (R IR RS I S S AR H A S5 A
financial assets (for example, trade receivables) and projected B\ o
cash flows from operations.
Because of the short duration of the contractual maturity BHRALE B ARE REFXRIBIE  KAEE
and low interest rate environment, the carrying value of the F<¢ @8 EmEERME N REERY - &
Group's financial liabilities approximates to the value of EE NRARRRREIHRBIES LRIEEA
undiscounted payments. The maturity profile of the financial B EMNEEHBRET
liabilities of the Group and the Company as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:
Less than
As at 31 March 2017 72017%3 8318 On demand 3 months Total
RER PR=@A #st
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FHET FHET
Trade payables Z SR RIE 403 = 403
Financial liabilities included in other AT A B AL FE FRIER
payables EEIAE 47,194 - 47,194
Amount due to an intermediate FEAS AR AR A A
holding company IE 272 - 272
47,869 - 47,869
Less than
As at 31 March 2016 R2016F3 H31H On demand 3 months Total
BREXK DR=1E A HEt
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET
Trade payables Z 5 ERFIE 645 - 645
Financial liabilities included in other ST AE MRS FIER
payables AR 7,316 = 7,316
7,961 - 7,961
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. IXEREEEERBE®)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair values of securities decrease
as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the
value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to price
risk arising from individual investments classified as
investments at fair value through profit or loss (note 18) as
at 31 March 2017 and 2016. The Group's listed investments
are listed in Hong Kong and are valued at quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period.

Management considers price risk as immaterial to the
Group. Therefore, sensitivity analysis is not presented.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value. The
Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares.

A subsidiary of the Group (i.e. ACCF) is regulated by the
Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”) and is
required to comply with certain minimum capital
requirements according to the rules of the SFC. The
required liquid capital according to the rules of the SFC was
HK$3,000,000 as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016.
The management monitors ACCF's liquid capital regularly to
ensure it meets the minimum liquid capital requirement in
accordance with the Securities and Futures (Financial
Resources) Rules adopted by the SFC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which is
current assets divided by current liabilities. The Group’s
policy is to maintain the current ratio above one and to
obtain additional capital for general working capital and
business development purposes as considered necessary by
the Board. The current ratios at the end of each reporting
period were as follows:

e VIR
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32. IEREREEEERBE®)

EXEE#E)

AEEERRBLEE(RBEERARB A
B)EEER - ARBHBR BRI RE L
EAR— YREZFERRARZRNER
SNER - DHE—REEBES REBERRB
& NBEWMEPROMBELRIOT ¢

At At

31 March 31 March

2017 2016

n2017 F R2016F

3H31H 3H31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Total current assets mENEELBRE 982,063 919,169
Total current liabilities mE B BB 47,895 29,555
Current ratio B LR 20.50 31.10
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 33. KARZHMBERRRRFEEZE
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY
At At
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
42017 & R 20164
3H31H 3A31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RSB R RIMIRE 22,809 22,809
22,809 22,809
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Due from subsidiaries RSB A B FkIE 402,964 3,083
Other assets and receivables B fh & e & W IR 581 591
Cash and bank balances WL RIBITERS 438,462 747,112
Total current assets MEBEEBET 842,007 750,786
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals HAb e IR EFT & 264 291
Total current liabilities mEBEERE 264 2,911
NET CURRENT ASSETS mENEEFE 841,743 747,875
Net assets BEFE 864,552 770,684
EQUITY R
Issued capital BEITRA 35,505 35,505
Reserves i 829,047 735,179
Total equity RS HAZE 864,552 770,684
Total assets BERAE 864,816 773,595
Total equity and liabilities e K B ERTE 864,816 773,595

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 14 June 2017 and
was signed on its behalf

CHO Michael Min-kuk
S B
Director

EF
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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33. ARFZMBRRRRFEERE

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE (&)
COMPANY (continued)
Share Share
premium  Contributed option Retained
account surplus reserve earnings Total
RiaER  AARY RERERE RERER Bt
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
st FET TAT TAT FAL FAT
At 1 January 2015 R2015F1 A 18 69,196 19,000 7,809 9,926 105,931
Total comprehensive income forthe B2 E Uiz 4%
period - - - 276 276
Equity-settled share option REEEMRRERSE
arrangements 24 = = 465 = 465
Allotment of new shares pursuant to: ~ fRIEM T RIBR BRI :
pre-IPO share option scheme BAARBEARIETE 21,232 - (8,274) = 12,958
New Shares Placing Agreement HREERZ 151,040 - - - 151,040
Subscription Agreement REHZ 469,658 - = = 469,658
Share issuance expenses BIRHES (5,149) (5,149)
At31March 2016 And 1 April 2016 20163 A31B R
2016F4 818 705,977 19,000 - 10,202 735,179
Total comprehensive income ERNZENEEE
for the year - - - 93,868 93,868
At31 March 2017 W2017%3 8318 705977 19,000 - 104070 829,047

The Company's contributed surplus represents the excess of
the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the reorganisation prior to the Listing, over the

nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange

therefor.

RRBOBARBIEN LT AR EEKE
B R R A FER B LI 1T
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33.

34.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are vested but yet to be exercised, as
further explained in the accounting policy for share-based
payment transactions in note 2.4 to the consolidated
financial statements. The amount will either be transferred
to the share premium account when the related options are
exercised, or be transferred to retained earnings should the
related options expire or be forfeited.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board on 14 June 2017.
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FIVE YEARS' FINANCIAL SUMMARY (Unaudited)

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
published audited financial statements is set out below.

2016/17 Annual |

===
A FMBEME (REEXR)

BT ERECUBHRERNAREN&IA
EMRFRENESE  EEMAERIHIINOT

2016/17  2015/16 2014 2013 2012
2016/17 & 2015/164F 20144 20134 20124
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FHT FHEIT FHEIT FHEIT FHEIT
RESULTS E

REVENUE WA 213,695 164,252 24,937 31,638 17,627
Net investment (loss)/income %& (18) WA ERE (21) 132 (2,478) 8,363 1,870
Net interest income MBI A FEE 2,789 4,077 1,696 923 1,634

Other income and net HERA K (EE),/

(losses)/gains W %5 R (96) 150 261 = =
Revenue and other income Yt A K E b U A 216,367 168,611 24,416 40,924 21,131
Operating expenses A (148,495)  (42,728)  (26,532)  (30,004)  (22,709)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX  BFipizF/(/&518) 67,872 125,883 (2,116) 10,920 (1,578)
Income tax credit/(expense)  FriSfiE %, (Bx) 11,310 (13,210) 785 (2,285) 41)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 7ZK/A\ &) 3 fe i 25

/PERIOD ATTRIBUTABLE HE AR

TO ORDINARY EQUITY FEHM

HOLDERS OF THE wm AL (E518)

COMPANY 79,182 112,673 (1,331) 8,635 (1,619)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAR

As at 31 March As at 31 December

M3A31H M12HA31H
2017 2016 2014 2013 2012
2017 & 2016 & 20144 20134 2012 €
HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FHETT FHT FET FEIT FET
TOTAL ASSETS B 1,020,138 922,616 136,800 142,319 122,428
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEE (47,895)  (29,555) (6,374) (13,873) (4,883)
972,243 893,061 130,426 128,446 117,545
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FIVE YEARS' FINANCIAL SUMMARY (Unaudited)
EFEMBERR (REER)

Note: The audited results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 and the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 and the audited assets and liabilities of
the Group as at 31 March 2017 and 2016 are those as set out in the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2017.

The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.
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